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Financial Summary
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SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET @ miSE| D 2 D EW A

Revenue from external

customers

REPBERZHEA
2022 2021
—ECF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BB
Mainland China AR A 154,679 224,033
Hong Kong B 305 2,036
Total 4B 154,984 226,069
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The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total
equity, share capital, results and other financial information of DINGYI
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
collectively, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five

Financial Summary
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MIAREEEREGRAR(TFLT ) LENE
RE ([ EREDNEERFERE=A=1—H
IFEEZREE  RBAE - BED  BX - X8R
HAH B ERBOR

years.
Financials (HK$ Million) MBEE (E¥EER) 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—P-F T ZZITF ENEF ZFN\F
Total assets BEE 4,416 3,956 2,788 2,827 3,055
Total liabilities waE 2,942 2,482 1,572 1,296 1,447
Total equity BhER 1,475 1,474 1,216 1,531 1,609
Shareholders’ funds RRES 1,475 1,474 1,216 1,531 1,609
Share capital AR
—in number (Million) B (B8R) 7,357 7,357 7,357 7,328 6,944
—in value —8E 74 74 74 73 69
Revenue WA 155 226 185 271 668
(Loss)/profit attributable to the A2 BB ATEML (EE),/
owners of the Company 2H (101) 43 (348) 213) (222)
Per Share Basis (HK cents) 0% (i&fll)
(Loss)/eamings - Basic (B8)/BF —&XK (1.38) 0.58 (4.79) (3.00) (3.79)
- Diluted — 8 (1.38) 0.58 4.75) (3.00) (3.79)
Dividends [e5) - - - - -
Net asset value BEFE 20.04 20.03 16.53 20.90 23.17
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Mr. CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric

AUDITOR
Elite Partners CPA Limited

LEGAL ADVISERS
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Mr. CHOW Shiu Ki (Chairman)
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China Construction Bank Corporation Zhanjiang Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda

Unit 2703, 27/F
Convention Plaza — Office Tower
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Tricor Standard Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

(Address to be changed to 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, No. 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong with effect from 15 August 2022)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 508

http://www.dingyi.hk
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Chairman’s Statement

R WE

By abiding the corporate spirit of “seizing early opportunities, pursuing
excellence, progressing proactively and forging ahead innovatively”,
over the years, we have been adhering to the industry intrinsic value as
the core of our investment philosophy. We believe all investment values
are built on the growth and success of business operation. We applied
the comprehensive investment evaluation and management system to
select and invest in those enterprises that have high growth potential
and solid business in their respective industry sector. Meanwhile,
we also worked closely with the management teams of prominent
enterprises, seeking mutual development to maximize our own
investment value through the joint growth with the investees.

Like in the past, we continue to move forward dependably in achieving
to “leap into the world with our foothold in China and become a
professional investment institute with international competitiveness
focusing on scalable industry investment”. Apart from our existing
securities trading, loan financing, properties development and other
businesses, we persevered unremittingly to make the best use
of various resources and channels to proactively seek significant
opportunities that are suitable for enterprise development, so as to
achieve growth for the Group in repaying the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) for their long-term support.

During the past year, the Company devoted much time to continue
exploring different investment opportunities proactively. In addition,
the management team did some research in different regions in the
world to explore and study other investment opportunities in resources
and energy projects, properties development, financial technology,
pharmaceutical and ocean industry. The Company is confident
about the prospect of such investment projects. We will notify our
Shareholders important information whenever is available.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The loss of the Company during the year was mainly attributable to
(i) the decrease in revenue of properties development business; (ii)
the non-recurrence of a one-off gain on modification of the terms of
convertible bonds in the amount of approximately HK$69 million for
the year ended 31 March 2021 whereas such gain was not recognised
for the year ended 31 March 2022; and (i) the increase in non-cash
recognition of impairment loss for the expected credit losses of loan
and interest receivables. The Group’s annual revenue was mainly
contributed by sale of properties and loan financing interest income.

In March 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of the 100%
indirect equity interest in Xintai Investment Company Limited*
CETIERIREARR AR (“Xintai”). Xintai is principally engaged in the
development, operation and investment of property. Xintai also holds
One Parkview* (2 & — 5% ), a complex land use development which
is located at Chikan District, Zhanjiang, Guangdong Province, the
PRC (the “Properties”). The Properties comprises of three phases, (i)
phase | comprises of two blocks of residential buildings with a number
of retail shops, car parks and facilities; (ii) phase Il comprises of four
blocks of residential buildings with a number of retail shops, car parks
and facilities; and (i) phase lll comprises of ten blocks of residential
buildings with a number of retail shops, car parks and facilities. The
Group has obtained pre-sales permit for certain blocks of the Phase |lI
of One Parkview project starting from June 2020 and is commencing
the pre-sales under the pre-sales permits. The Company is very
optimistic about the revenue and profit to be brought by the property
development industry in which it will engage in the PRC in future.

The COVID-19 outbreak has resulted in an extremely complicated
external environment with lots of uncertainties. However, the Group’s
business and operation were not adversely impacted or disrupted by
COVID-19 pandemic for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group will
implement proactive epidemic prevention measures to ensure the health
and safety of its employees and customers. The Group will continue to
monitor the developments of the COVID-19 outbreak closely, assess
and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement
EN %80

In the future, the Group will continue to explore more investment
opportunities, especially in new energy, finance, ocean industry and
property development.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
and also my sincere thanks to all stakeholders who had made
valuable contributions to the Group this year. They include our loyal
Shareholders, fellow directors of the Company (the “Directors”), our
business partners, our steadfast customers, and those hardworking
and dedicated staff who have longed been supporting us.

Reward Others While Enriching Ourselves, Thus Enlightening Dingyil

Li Kwong Yuk
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in securities trading, loan financing,
properties development and other businesses.

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations for the year
amounted to approximately HK$155 million or HK$71 million less than
that for the previous year. There was a loss for the year attributable
to the Company’s owners of approximately HK$101 million (2021:
profit of approximately HK$43 million). Such turnaround from profit
to loss was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in revenue of
properties development business; (ii) the non-recurrence of a one-off
gain on modification of the terms of convertible bonds in the amount
of approximately HK$69 million for the year ended 31 March 2021
whereas such gain was not recognised for the year ended 31 March
2022; and (jii) the increase in non-cash recognition of impairment loss
for the expected credit losses of loan and interest receivables.

The basic and diluted loss per share was HK1.38 cents as compared
with earnings per share of HK0.58 cents last year.

Securities trading

During the year, the Group has been involved in the securities trading
business. The Group had realised loss on the disposal of these listed
securities investments amounting to approximately HK$60,000 during
the year (2021: approximately HK$1 million). The Group recorded a
loss of approximately HK$1 million (2021: gain of approximately HK$33
million) arising from changes in the fair value of the listed securities. As
a result, the Group reported a segment loss of approximately HK$1
million (2021: gain of approximately HK$32 million) during the year.
Going forward, the Group expects that the future performance of the
listed securities investments held by the Group will be volatile and
substantially affected by overall economic environment, equity market
conditions, investor sentiment and the business performance and
development of the investee companies. The Board will closely monitor
the performance progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.

Loan financing

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$148 million (2021: approximately HK$171 million) from loan
financing segment. The Group recorded an allowance for impairment
of loan and interest receivables of approximately HK$60 million (2021:
reversal of approximately HK$20 million). As a result, the Group reported
a segment profit of approximately HK$88 million (2021: approximately
HK$191 million). The Group will further develop this segment in order to
earn a higher interest income.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Properties development

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HKS$7 million (2021: approximately HK$55 million) and segment loss
of approximately HK$15 million (2021: profit of approximately HK$11
million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease
from sales of car parks and remaining units left over from old property
projects. The Group has obtained pre-sales permit for certain blocks
of the Phase Il of One Parkview project starting from June 2020 and
is commencing the pre-sales under the pre-sales permits. The Group
anticipates further revenue and positive results from this segment in the
future upon completion of properties under development and the sales
of completed properties.

Other businesses - trading of wine

The Group has kept certain quantities of fine wines. The stocks will be
offered to sell when the market prices are favorable such that the Group
can obtain a good return on the trading. At present, the stocks are kept
in the wine cellar situated in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2022, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 7,356,783,015 (31 March 2021: 7,357,008,015) of
HK$0.01 each and its issued share capital was HK$73,567,830 (31
March 2021: HK$73,570,080).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, a total of 225,000 repurchased
shares were cancelled.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the capital structure
of the Company during the year.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has outstanding convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$980,000,000 (the
“Outstanding Convertible Bonds”) with the conversion price of
HKS$0.80 per share. The number of shares that would be issued upon
full conversion of the Outstanding Convertible Bonds is 1,225,000,000
shares (representing approximately 16.65% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and approximately 14.27% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by such outstanding
conversion shares).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Assuming that the Outstanding Convertible Bonds were converted in
full as at 31 March 2022, the respective shareholdings of the substantial
shareholders of the Company would have been changed as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis

Before conversion of

Outstanding Convertible Bonds
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Immediately after conversion of
Outstanding Convertible Bonds

RIRTTE AR AR (R 5 5 IR A0
Number of % of total
Name of Substantial Shareholders shares held issued shares
TEREER BB BERNOHEE IHBIITRR %
Mr. LI Kwong Yuk 3,288,685,405 44.70%
ENEBRE (Note 1)
(M%)
China State Shipbuilding Corporation 908,685,000 12.35%
Limited* (Note 2)
P EMMEEAR A E (FiEE2)
China Shipbuilding Capital Limited 908,685,000 12.35%
(Note 2)
B E RB R A E (FEE2)
Total issued shares 7,356,783,015
RuETRin
Notes: BiE
1. Including shares held by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, Wincon Capital Investment Limited 1.

(“WCIL”), Wincon Asset Management Limited (“WAML”) and Win Master
Group Limited (“WMGL”"). WCIL, WAML and WMGL are wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Li. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of
this report, Mr. Li has no present intention to exercise the conversion rights
attached to the Outstanding Convertible Bonds to an extent which would
render him obliged to make a mandatory offer under Rule 26 of the Code on
Takeovers and Mergers issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in

Hong Kong.

2. China Shipbuilding Capital Limited was wholly owned by FEIfifIEEBR A 2.
7] (China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited*). By virtue of the SFO, # Bl
A% EABRAF] (China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited*) was deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by China Shipbuilding

Capital Limited.

For identification purpose only
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BAERNEE HBEITIRN %

4,5183,685,405 52.60%
(Note 1)
(FF&E1)

908,685,000 10.59%

908,685,000 10.59%

8,581,783,015

BEERERE KBEAREERAR([XEE
*]) KkBEEEEARAG([KEHEE]) LWn
Master Group Limited ([ WMGL J) 58 8% 15 © k&
B XBEERWMGLHEAE 2 ERELHES -
BEEMRY  RAREEH  TE4EEMNERTE
i# ARTTIE ATHR AR (B SR AP O30 AR - IR AR S
BEFLAEEBERZEGRMO A RIUE A6
SPRIEE26IEIR s bl 24 o

hEAMEAERAAETERNEEERATSE
B o REBSRBEED - PEMMEEERAT
WA B EABR AT A AL TR
P i -

(EXaEal

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
SERITHER

11




12

Management Discussion and Analysis
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The dilutive impact on the loss per share of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2022 is not applicable as conversion of the
Outstanding Convertible Bonds (if any) would have resulted in decrease
in loss per share.

Subsequent amendments to the terms and
conditions of the other bond

On 24 June 2022, the Company entered into the fourth deed of
amendments to further extend the maturity date of the other bond in the
principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000 to 31 May
2023.

Cancellation of Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
offsetting mechanism

On 9 June 2022, the third reading of a bill for cancelling the MPF
offsetting mechanism (the “Bill”) was passed in the Legislative Council.
After the Bill takes effect, employers can no longer offset employees’
severance payments or long-service payments against the MPF derived
from the employer’s mandatory and voluntary contributions. The
offsetting mechanism will be cancelled starting from 2025.

The matter mentioned above will have impact to the Group’s provision
for long service payments (“LSP”). Upon the MPF offsetting mechanism
is cancelled, the Group can no longer deduct LSP from their portion of
MPF contributions. The abolition of the offsetting arrangement has no
retrospective effect.

As at the date of the issue of the financial statements, the exact
effective date of the abolition is yet to be determined and the details
arrangement is yet to be announced by the government. This is a non-
adjusting event after the reporting period as the event did not relate to
the obligation of the LSP at the end of the reporting period, but reflects
the circumstances (i.e. the law) that have arisen subsequently.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of the
Bill to the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether the
abolishment of the MPF offsetting mechanism will result in a substantial
change to the Group’s financial statements.

Other than the abovementioned, no other material subsequent event is
noted.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The COVID-19 outbreak has resulted in an extremely complicated
external environment with lots of uncertainties. However, the Group’s
business and operation were not adversely impacted or disrupted by
COVID-19 pandemic for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group will
implement proactive epidemic prevention measures to ensure the health
and safety of its employees and customers. The Group will continue to
monitor the developments of the COVID-19 outbreak closely, assess
and react actively to its impacts on the financial position and operating
results of the Group.

Apart from the existing businesses of securities trading, loan financing,
properties development and other businesses, the Group will continue
to explore other potential investment opportunities with reasonable
returns that meet the Company’s criteria. This will not only strengthen
our core business but also increase the shareholders’ values. The
Group has been exploring some investment opportunities in resources
and energy projects, properties development, financial technology,
pharmaceutical and ocean industry.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review
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The Group’s revenue decreased from approximately HK$226 million
in 2021 to approximately HK$155 million in 2022, mainly because of a
decrease of revenue in properties development segment.

The gross profit decreased by approximately HK$55 million, or 26.5%,
from approximately HK$208 million in 2021 to approximately HK$153
million in 2022. The gross profit margin increased from approximately
92.2% in 2021 to approximately 98.8% in 2022.

Other income decreased to approximately HK$1 million this year (2021:
approximately HK$3 million). The decrease was mainly because no
government grant was received for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Selling and distribution costs decreased to approximately HK$11 million
(2021: approximately HK$14 million) which was mainly due to the
decrease of marketing expenses. General and administrative expenses
decreased to approximately HK$43 million (2021: approximately
HK$45 million) which was mainly due to the cost saving resulted by an
implementation of cost control during the year.

Property, plant and equipment decreased to approximately HK$11
million in this year (2021: approximately HK$14 million).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, representing equity securities listed in Hong
Kong, Shanghai and London, of approximately HK$33 million
(2021: approximately HK$34 million). The Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$1 million (2021: gain of approximately HK$33 million)
arising from changes in fair value of listed securities. Since there was
no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held by the Group
valued more than 5% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March
2022, there were no significant investments held by the Group.
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Cash and bank balances decreased from approximately HK$307 million
in last year to approximately HK$152 million this year.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s net assets attributable to the owners
of the Company amounted to approximately HK$1,475 million (2021:
HK$1,474 million), an increase of approximately HK$1 million when
compared with that of 2021.

As at 31 March 2022, total debt to equity ratio was 0.61 (2021:
1.04) and net debt to equity ratio was 0.51 (2021: 0.83), which were
expressed as a percentage of total borrowings and total borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents respectively, over the total equity of
approximately HK$1,475 million (2021: HK$1,474 million).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s bank borrowing, promissory note
and convertible bonds amounted to approximately Nil, HK$6 million and
HK$893 million respectively (31 March 2021: approximately HK$384
million, HK$5 million and HK$1,141 million respectively).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no charge on assets.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s properties under development with
a carrying amounts of approximately HK$980 million was pledged to a
bank for bank borrowing.
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Financial Review
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Most of the Group’s assets are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), Renminbi (“RMB”), United States dollars (“USD”) and
Australian dollars (“AUD”). Considering the exchange rates between
these currencies are relatively stable, the Group believed that the
corresponding exposure to RMB, USD and AUD exchange rates
fluctuation was relatively limited. The Group does not undertake any
derivative financial instruments or hedging instruments. The Group will
constantly review the economic situation and its foreign currency risk
profile, and continues to actively monitor foreign exchange exposure to
minimise the impact of any adverse currency movement.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had capital commitments
of approximately HK$262,578,000 (2021:
HK$132,279,000).

approximately

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimise the cost of
funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in HKD, USD, RMB
or AUD. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments, the Group will consider new
financing channels while maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Set out below are the biographical details of the current Directors:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 60, joined the Company as executive Director
and chairman of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also
the chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and directors of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Li is a businessman with over 13 years’ investment experience in
the highway industry in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
He studied at Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Trade from 1978 to
1981. Mr. Li had worked on various investment projects in areas
such as infrastructure and finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. He
has 50% shareholding in Wincon International Limited (“Wincon
International”), a company set up by Mr. Li and incorporated in
Hong Kong, which is principally engaged in investment business in
highways in the PRC. He is a sole director and the beneficial owner
of Wincon Capital Investment Limited, the controlling Shareholder,
and also directors of various companies including Wincon
International, Wincon Asset Management Limited, Win Master Group
Limited, Dingyi Wantong Investment (HK) Limited, Dingyi Venture
Capital (HK) Limited, Dingyi New Energy Investment Limited, E /3R
BES R A ABR A A (Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co., Ltd.,
being its unofficial English translation) and /I T R EEBEEH
R & 7] (Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its
unofficial English translation).
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Mr. Su Xiaonong (“Mr. Su”)

Mr. Su, aged 58, joined the Company as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”)
on 27 October 2011. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Su graduated from East China
College of Political Science and Law in 1986. He has been director or
management of various venture capital, private equity and investment
consultancy companies in the PRC, including & 3l 1 B 2% & & & 12
B BR 2 A (Shenzhen Gofar Investment Management Co., Ltd., being
its unofficial English translation) during the period from April 2003 to
November 2007. Mr. Su currently works at SF Il i B B 5 £ 3% & B
M A BR 2 &l (Shenzhen Union Venture Capital Consulting Co., Ltd.,
being its unofficial English translation) and Z#JIIT S EE B ERRA
Al (Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation). He is also a partner and vice president of Shenzhen
Dingyi Venture Capital L.P..

Mr. Wang Xiaohua (“Mr. Wang”)

Mr. Wang, aged 60, graduated from the Nankai University with
a bachelor’s degree in Economics and a master’s degree in
International Economics and Trade. He has more than 30 years’
experience in investment banking and equity investment fund.
He served as a lecturer in the Faculty of Economics in the Nankai
University from July 1986 to October 1996 and worked as a senior
manager in the investment banking department of CITIC Securities
Company Limited from May 1996 to December 1998. Mr. Wang
joined JRIIITH BIFTIR E £ B BBR A F (Shenzhen Capital Group Co.,
Limited) in August 1999 and currently serves as a senior investment
manager of that company. He was a director of EM I BRI TEE
TR BBR A E) (Guangzhou Ruili Kormee Automatic Electronics Co.,
Ltd.) (being a subsidiary of Im37 &£ B AR A7 (Ruili Group Co., Ltd)
which was previously listed on NASDAQ) and FIITE A £ £ W EHE
BBR AR (Shenzhen Ecomann Biotechnology Co., Ltd.).
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Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (“Mr. Chow?”)

Mr. Chow, aged 54, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 27 October 2011. He is also chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Chow has accumulated years of working
experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance areas. He
holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. Mr. Chow is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has worked for various private and listed companies
at senior management level. He is currently serving in a senior
management role in a consultancy services company. He served as an
independent non-executive director of China Assurance Finance Group
Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
8090 and was delisted on 12 March 2021) from December 2011 to
March 2021.

Mr. Cao Kuangyu (“Mr. Cao”)

Mr. Cao, aged 72, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 12 December 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cao holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University of Hunan and
a Master Degree in Financial Management from the University of
London. Mr. Cao has extensive experience in the areas of banking
and finance. He worked in Bank of China, Hunan Province branch
for the period from July 1981 to February 1996 and his last position
was the deputy president of the branch. For the period from February
1996 to September 1999, Mr. Cao was the deputy general manager
of Bank of China, Singapore branch. For the period from September
1999 to September 2003, he was the president of China Citic Bank,
Shenzhen branch. Then he worked as the managing director of the
investment banking division of BOCI Asia Limited from September 2003
to September 2007. Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive
director of New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (stock code: 472)
and Dongwu Cement International Limited (stock code: 695), both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
an independent non-executive director of Macrolink Capital Holdings
Limited (stock code: 758), which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from January 2013 to June 2021.
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Mr. Ip Chi Wai (“Mr. Ip”)

Mr. Ip, aged 54, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 31 March 2016. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Degree of a Bachelor of Laws. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong
and has more than 20 years of experience in the legal profession. Mr.
Ip is currently an independent non-executive director of Asia Standard
Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292) and Wealthy Way Group Limited
(stock code: 3848), both of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ji Jiaqgi (“Mr. Ji”)

Mr. Ji, aged 55, joined the Company as executive president on 20
February 2017. Mr. Ji has over 20 years of experience in scientific
research and practical work on risk control and investment operation
in financial market. Mr. Ji holds a Bachelor’'s Degree in Science from
South China Normal University, a Postgraduate Degree in Economics
from the Communist Party School in Guangdong and a Doctoral
Degree in Finance from College of Economics of Jinan University.
He has published numerous articles in major periodicals relating to
financial and public management sectors. He once worked in provincial
governments, universities, and engaged in the bankruptcy works of
(B 3 Bl BR 1= 5t % & A &) Guangdong International Trust Investment
Corporation* and reorganization of Guangdong Holdings Limited.
He is currently an adjunct professor of Tsinghua University and Jinan
University respectively, and also a distinguished visiting professor of
Central University of Finance and Economics.

For identification purpose only
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Ms. Kuang Yating (“Ms. Kuang”)

Ms. Kuang, aged 32, joined the Company as an investment analyst
on 3 January 2017. Ms. Kuang has 5 years of experience in data
analysis, corporate finance and investment management. Ms. Kuang
holds a Dual Bachelor’'s Degree in Management and Law from Jinan
University, a Master’'s Degree in Finance from University of Bath,
England. She was granted the international mathematical modelling
award. She obtained the Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and
Financial Risk Manager (FRM) Licenses and is a member of the HK
Society of Financial Analysts. She worked at the group business unit
of China Construction Bank Corporation, specializing in constructing
performance models for banks and provision of investment and
financing proposals for clients.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and has introduced corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March
2022 except for certain deviations disclosed in this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”) for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and they
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

The overall management of the business of the Company is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
as a whole. The Board has delegated the power to oversee the daily
operational matters of the Group to the management of the Company
under the supervision of the Board.
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The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its
power in an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and
timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and the
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.

Appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against the Directors and senior management of the Group
arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been arranged.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprised the following Directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Xiaohua

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai
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The biographical details of each current Director are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management Profile” in this annual report.
Their roles and functions are published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. A
balanced composition of executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors also generates a strong independent element on
the Board, which allows independent and objective decision making
process for the best interest of the Company. The Company will review
the composition of the Board regularly to ensure the Board possesses
the appropriate and necessary expertise, skills and experience to meet
the needs of the business development of the Group.

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki has served on the Board for more than nine
years. He has clearly demonstrated diligence, his willingness to
exercise independent judgement and provide objective opinion to
the management of the Company. There is no evidence that length
of tenure is having any adverse impact on his independence. The
Board therefore considers that Mr. Chow remains independent,
notwithstanding the length of his tenure.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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The Board meets either in person or through other electronic means of
communication to monitor the execution of plans, review the Group’s
business performance and review financial reporting as well as all
other material matters. The Board held 4 regular meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2022. Individual attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings are set out in the table on page 31 of
this report. Code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least
14 days should be given of a regular board meeting to all Directors
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. During the year ended
31 March 2022, certain regular Board meetings were convened with
less than 14 days’ notice to facilitate the Directors’ timely reaction and
expeditious decision making process in respect of internal affairs of the
Group. All Board meetings, nevertheless, were duly convened and held
in the way prescribed by the Bye-laws of the Company. The Board will
use reasonable endeavour to meet the requirement of code provision
A.1.3 of the CG Code in future. Minutes of the Board meetings and
meetings of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee were sent to all Directors for comments
and approval. The signed minutes of the said meetings are open for
inspection by all Directors. If a substantial Shareholder or a Director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the
Board has determined to be material, the matters will be dealt with by a
Board meeting rather than written resolutions and the Board will ensure
that an adequate number of independent non-executive Directors are
involved in the consideration of the relevant matters. Independent non-
executive Directors are encouraged to take an active role in the Board
meetings.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships, among the Board members.
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Newly appointed Directors are provided with an induction after
their appointment so as to ensure that they have appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of their duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular
updates on the business performance of the Group to the Directors.
The Directors are continually updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good
corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development by way of attending trainings and/or seminars organised
by professional organisations and director training webcasts organised
by the Stock Exchange and also reading materials for updating new
practices, rules and regulations to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the Directors received for the year ended 31 March 2022 is
summarized below:

EZBENHES  HerBERTRERE—(EGS
T AREREEE T RARE A ES R LW A
RIBRAE REEREE THBEREE - AT
EMRMEFENAKBE 2 XBRAEN - EERE
BSER EMRAREMEREERE 2 KA ER
AR MERTE RERRIFEREAEMR

RRABEKBEEF B2 MEFEBPT M AE
R/ E - BTSN A FEREIIARE
s E R - RANERNMHEM R 2B EE X
TR - UBRNMEHRE 2 ME N IREE - REAR
ARFZREE  EEREE_T-_—F=A=1—
BIEFEERZZEIIBRIT

Training courses/

Name seminars/webcasts Reading materials
ILHIERE ERE

HE # L FREEH

Executive Directors

BITESE

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk v -

THIBFEE

Mr. Su Xiaonong v/ -

BRI L

Mr. Wang Xiaohua 4 -

EREERAE

Independent Non-executive Directors

WIUERITES

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 4 v

[BEEETA

Mr. Cao Kuangyu v/ -

BERTEE

Mr. Ip Chi Wai 4 v

HEREE

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022




Mr. Li Kwong Yuk is currently the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Su
Xiaonong is currently the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In
accordance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate and
performed by different persons.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for overseeing the functions
of the Board and providing leadership for the Board while the Chief
Executive Officer is responsible for managing the businesses of the
Group.

Each independent non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from the
effective date of the service agreement and automatically renewed for
one year from the expiry date of the appointed period until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ notice.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of two years from the effective date of the
service agreement and automatically renewed for one year from the
expiry date of the appointed period until terminated by either party
giving at least three months’ notice.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting of the Company. Under Bye-law 112(A) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
Every Director shall retire from office no later than the third annual
general meeting since the last re-election or appointment of such
Director.

The emolument payable to Directors is determined by the Board with
reference to the Remuneration Committee’s recommendation as well
as the Directors’ duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions.
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The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in order to maintain high level of corporate governance
standard of the Company.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Audit Committee),
Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai. The chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, possesses appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the requirements of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review
and provide supervision over the financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control procedures of the Group and to
review the Company’s annual report and accounts and the interim
report and to provide advices and comments thereon to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee met twice
with the auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”). Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out in the “Terms of
Reference of the Audit Committee” which are available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Audit Committee reviewed
annual audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 and the unaudited interim financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 September 2021 with recommendations to
the Board for approval; reviewed the Group’s enterprise risk assessment
report and internal audit report for the year 2020/2021.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2022. Individual attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the table on page 31 of this report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the
Remuneration Committee), Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Ip Chi Wai, and
one executive Director, namely Mr. Su Xiaonong.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
but not limited to, making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the senior management of the Company and establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in the “Terms of Reference of the Remuneration Committee”
which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the existing Directors and senior management of the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 March 2022. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 31 of this
report.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended 31 March 2022 is
set out below:
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki and Mr.
Ip Chi Wai.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
but not limited to, reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience, length of service and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are set out in the
“Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee” which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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The Board has also adopted a Directors’ nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) to formally set out the criteria and nomination
procedures on the appointment of Directors and succession planning
of Directors. According to the Nomination Policy, the ultimate
responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors rests with the
entire Board or the Shareholders in general meeting, as the case may
be. The Board has delegated the relevant screening and evaluation
process to the Nomination Committee, which identifies suitably qualified
candidates and recommends them to the Board. In assessing the
suitability of the proposed candidate, the Nomination Committee takes
into consideration the candidate’s character, integrity, competence,
skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the Group’s principal
business, devoting sufficient time and attention to the Board, fulfilment
of the independence requirements as set out in the Listing Rules (for
independent non-executive Directors) and diversity on the Board. After
reaching its decision, the Nomination Committee nominates relevant
Director candidates to the Board for approval and for consideration and
recommendation in respect of re-appointment of any existing Director(s)
of the Board, for the proposed candidate to stand for re-election at a
general meeting. The Board will have the final decision relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for re-election as Directors at
general meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; assessed
the independence of all independent non-executive Directors; and
recommended to the Board on the nomination of retiring Directors for
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29
September 2021 (the “2021 AGM”).

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended
31 March 2022. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 31 of this report.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the fees paid/payable to the
Auditor in respect of audit services provided by the Auditor were as
follows:
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, the individual attendance record

RBE-FT-__F-A=+—HLFER ZE=F

of the Directors at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings, REEEEH - %ﬁiéiﬁé@% yMEEgeg
the Remuneration Committee meeting, the Nomination Committee %IRRT EEERA ST FREEFREZ
meeting and the 2021 AGM is set out below: BRI E R eEkpmnT
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHE SERHE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting 2021 AGM
EFe ERZHE FHZR® REZAE —E-—%
3] g ik ik g BREBFEXE
Executive Directors
hioES
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 4/4 N/A N/A 11 0/1
TREEE TEA T
Mr. Su Xiaonong 4/4 N/A 11 N/A 0/1
BEREE TEA T
Mr. Wang Xiaohua 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 01
BEEE 4 TERA TiERA TEA
Independent non-executive Directors
BIERTEE
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
[BEREE
Mr. Cao Kuangyu 4/4 2/2 1/1 N/A 01
EMTELE TiE
Mr. Ip Chi Wai 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
Due to travel restrictions as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, Mr. ARARHEHAEEMEEOIKRERS - £F
Li Kwong Yuk, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the @ FEE NI AR D ES AT HHE’]?HIH@}E
2021 AGM as required by code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The MEA2M& - HE_T - —FRRAFKE -

2021 AGM was chaired by the independent non-executive Director,
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki. The annual general meetings provide a channel
for communication between the Board and the Shareholders.
Other than the annual general meetings, the Shareholders may
communicate with the Company through the contact methods listed
on the Company’s website.
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The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has complied
with Principle C.2 of the CG Code by establishing appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. Management
is responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
systems, while the Board oversees management in performing its duties
on an ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems are described in the sections below:

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification. 1dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate
the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year ended 31
March 2022, no significant risk was identified.
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The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0”) 2013 framework. The framework
enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework
are shown as follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provides the basis for carrying out internal control
across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming a
basis for determining how risks should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.

o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information needed
to carry out day-to-day controls.

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an
inside information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the
Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters

into significant negotiations.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AR A B #lE A& Commitee of Sponsoring
Orgamzahons of the Treadway Commission
([COSO)) = —=FIELENNE BT R - ZIE
REREEREERB MBS ENME RBEE - %R
ENASEERFESERERIERNBE - ZIER
HEHAFIRAT -

o  EARE —ERETASEAMEIERM
EMEeER - AR Fr AR o

o EBRFTE -
A Ry TIEA A EE B IZAE R
TFE AT E IR AR R IE o

— (BT T ) BB 0 A
CFERE

o EMFE) RBBUERIEFMWILAITE - A
BRMITE IR E ARKRR LAZER B ZFT1E
HAHETR ©

o  EHREE
HETHE

A EB K IR 38 DA 1A 2 52 B3R
EEVEFRAR AR} -

o EE:

FrE R AR A A SRR EEN &
TERAFELEIELE °

SRERAAEBRIEAREENGIE - MEREE -
B TEEMELRKE  ARETRARERR
NBHEEBRREER - ARBEE TR ERE TAIE

B ARER 7 A B RO IRE I8 SEIA D 2 R BN 5 [
FRANRERTE  HB%E:

o BHERBIEERENEELRN -HANRN
BHEMES T2RAMBFNRE RS -

o AREETEAEBRETHRE HE




o The executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external parties
such as the media, analysts or investors.

o Refer to inside information policy and procedures for more
procedures.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted during the year ended
31 March 2022, no significant control deficiency was identified.

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified Public
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal control
systems is conducted annually and the results are reported to the
Board via the Audit Committee afterwards.

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s reviews, which include but not limited
to (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last annual review, and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment; and (i) the scope and quality of
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems.

The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by IA function and
the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate. Such systems, however,
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also considered
that the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting functions were adequate and their
training programmes and budget provided were sufficient.
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The Company appointed Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric (“Mr. Chan”) as
the Company Secretary from an external secretarial service provider.
The primary corporate contact person at the Company with the external
secretarial service provider is Mr. Su Xiaonong.

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan confirmed
that he has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Rights to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene special general meeting (the “SGM”) of
the Company according to the Bye-Laws of the Company and the
provisions as set out in Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Bermuda Act”). The Board shall, on the requisition
of Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, forthwith proceed duly, to convene the SGM. The
requisition must state the purposes of the SGM, and must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2703, 27/F, Convention
Plaza — Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene the SGM in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Act, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the
said date.
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Procedures for putting enquiries by the Shareholders
to the Board

The Company endeavors to maintain two way communications
with the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders
are encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@dingyi.hk or by mail to the principle place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Unit 2703, 27/F, Convention
Plaza — Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. All the
enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The Shareholders are also
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting and the SGM and
to put their enquiries to the Board directly. Notices are duly circulated
to the Shareholders in order to ensure each Shareholder is informed
to attend the annual general meeting and the SGM. The Chairman
of the Board, the chairmen of each of the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, the senior
management and the Auditor will attend the annual general meeting
and respond to the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner. The
procedures for conducting a poll will be explained by the chairmen of
the annual general meeting and the SGM orally at the beginning of the
aforesaid meetings.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at the
general meetings

(i) Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act, either any
number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at
the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which
the requisition relates or not less than 100 Shareholders, can
request the Company in writing to (a) give to the Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of the next annual general meeting of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.
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Notice of any such intended resolution shall be deposited to the
above-stated principle place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the meeting (in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less than
one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the relevant
expenses of the Company.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under the provisions as stated
in Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act.

(i)  For procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the information available on
the website of the Company at http://www.dingyi.hk.

The Company adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
March 2019.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company considers it appropriate to
align the dividend payments with profit and ensure that it is able to pay
dividend on a sustainable and affordable basis. The Company may
declare dividend in any financial year after taking into consideration the
Company’s financial position, liquidity and cash flow, capital requirement
for future growth, economic conditions and any other factors to be
considered by the Directors. The Company will declare dividend out of
retained profit under certain circumstances, and therefore there can be
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any given
year.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at http://www.dingyi.hk, where the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), is pleased to present
this Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”) Report (the
“Report”) to provide an overview of the Group’s management of
significant issues affecting its operation, including environmental, social
and governance issues.

The objective of this Report is to highlight the Group’s ESG performance
for the purpose of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the
Group’s ESG concepts and practices in achieving sustainable
development for the future.

The Group is principally engaged in loan financing, securities trading
and properties development. The Board of Directors (the “Board”)
acknowledged the responsibility for monitoring and managing ESG-
related risks and the effectiveness of the ESG management system.
The Board reviews and discusses the goals and targets under the ESG
initiatives to optimise efficient use of resources and to minimise the
impact on the environment and natural resources from the Group’s
operation on an annual basis.

Sustainable development is an integral part of the Group’s business
strategy in order to achieve business excellence and enhance
capabilities for long-term competitiveness. The Group is committed to
operating in a manner that is economically, socially and environmentally
sustainable while balancing the interests of various stakeholders and
fostering a positive impact on the society. The Group’s sustainability
strategy is based on compliance with the applicable legal requirements,
principle of sustainability and opinions from stakeholders. The Group
has established and implemented various policies to manage and
monitor the risks related to the environment, employment, operating
practices and community.

The Board believes that a sound environmental, social and governance
structure is vital for the continued sustainability and development of the
Group’s activities. The Group is willing to take more responsibilities for
the society but with a view to balancing the Shareholders’ interests and
the society’s benefits. The Group will continue to strengthen the efforts
in information collection for better performance in the ESG areas and
broader disclosure of related information in sustainable development.
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Quality ESG governance is inextricably linked to the sustainable
development of business. The Board assumes the ESG management
responsibility of the Group. It is responsible for monitoring the
formulation and report of the ESG policy and identifying and controlling
the risks related to ESG to ensure appropriate ESG governance
policies are formulated. The Board delegates ESG management and
implementation powers to the management of each department,
and the management will implement the ESG policies and measures
established.

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Main
Board Listing Rules — “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” and has complied with the “comply or explain” provision in the
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Listing Rules.

The Group has prepared this Report in accordance with the following

reporting principles:

REBDKRIATRERUBEARS

BRUH N R TR

BEENL

. Materiality: Important and relevant information to stakeholders on different ESG aspects is covered in the
Report. A materiality assessment was conducted to determine material ESG issues with results
approved by the Board.

BARM : RBERENTRERE  HEgRERTHARNEMEBEZARANER - HFIEETERM
FHANEEEARRE  HEeREREE  BihEREESIIME -

. Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and assumptions used to prepare the quantitative
information is disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided with narrative and
comparative figures, where possible.

21k ARmESCERNERRE  HEARBRREMIEKRE - ErlBERLT -
HENLER -

° Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare and present ESG data in the Report, unless
otherwise specified, to allow for meaningful comparisons.

—&t REARAIN  RRERA—BHNERENZTIRE - L@ RERBIE - UEETT

° Balance: The information is presented without the inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms
of manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by the reader.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This Report demonstrates the Group’s sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 (the “Reporting
Period”). There was no material change to the methods or key
performance indicators (“‘KPIs”) used by the Group in the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021. The Report focuses on the environmental
and social performance of the Group in Hong Kong and PRC during
the Reporting Period and the disclosure of relevant key performance
indicators. The Group did not have any reporting boundaries for this
Report.

The Group values the opinions of our stakeholders have significant
value in improving the ESG performances. Therefore, we are committed
to effective communication with different stakeholders through a variety
of communication channels to listen and respond to the expectations
and requirements of the stakeholders.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders
that are important to the Group’s business and established various
channels for communication. The following table provides an overview
of the Group’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Key stakeholders Main concerns Channels for communication/response
EFERHHE EEmME BB EERE
Shareholders - Operation performance - General meeting
PRER - EERH - BREX®
- Risk management - Company’s announcements
- EAREE -  RARE
- Email and telephone communications
—  BEREFERA
- Company’s website
/N S
Suppliers/service providers - Close communication - Meetings
HHhrER, ARIGIRHtE - mYER - 83
- Order/contract execution - Email and telephone communications
-  BITES A48 —  BEREFEBA
- Product quality
- EmEE
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Key stakeholders Main concerns Channels for communication/response
EEHGE FE/ME B8 EfERE
Customers - Customer relationship - Customer hotlines
S - BPBE - EPRR
- Responsible investment - Suggestion box
- BEARE — ERM
- Risk management - Email and telephone communications
- EREE —  BENEFERA
Employees - Long-term career development - Meetings
(== - REOBEZER - &
- Health and safety - Email and telephone communications
- EEHEZE —  BENEFERA
- Remuneration and benefits
- FBIREN
- Staff training
-  BISEI
The Public - Community service - Company’s announcements
N - HER% —  RAERE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns of stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,

and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group have adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting
by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to the business
of the Group. All the key ESG issues and KPIs are reported in the
Report according to the recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide

(Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

- Company’s website

—  REE

FRERFNEET ARE - AKE TR NE
MBI T - RS R REERANREEEIELE
RAERRR - ARG REEHLEENF
%2 o

AEEERTHEAKRERBM S BEZNBRER
5 HekEREHE  RRE HeRERRET
REEAMRA - RERE - LB REAMEES
(EARAM SR — +) M2k - AREFLPAERSR
RS HeREAEENEREBISRIELER




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance of ESG aspects
through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

o Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of relevant
ESG reports of the local and international industry peers.

o The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on
the importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of the
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation - Stakeholder Engagement

° The Group discussed with key stakeholders about key ESG areas
identified above to ensure that all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

° Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2021, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on this Report for
the Group’s sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email at
info@dingyi.hk.

The Group is mainly involved in office operations and its business
activities do not have a significant impact on the environment or
natural resources. In spite of this, the Group are committed to
continuously improving the environmental sustainability of the
Group’s business and ensuring that environmental consideration
remains one of the key focuses in fulfilling the obligations to both
the environment and community. To demonstrate the commitment
to sustainable development, the Group have established relevant
emission reduction and energy-saving initiatives to manage the
emission and maintain green operations.
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Throughout the year, the Group fully complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong,
such as the Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311),
the Sewage Services Ordinance (Chapter 463) and the Waste
Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354). Besides, during the Reporting
Period, the Group were not aware of any non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on the
Group related to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. The Group also regularly update with the
latest development of the applicable laws and regulations on
environmental protection.

A1. EMISSIONS

Air emission control is essential to mitigate environmental
impacts and protect employees’ health. As the Group is
mainly involved in general office activities, the amount of
air pollutant emissions are insignificant. The air pollutant
emissions are mainly generated from the vehicles used for
transportation. The emission from the vehicles imposed an
immaterial impact on the overall air pollution in Hong Kong.
The detail of air pollutant emissions of the Group during the
Reporting Period was as follows:
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Type of air pollutants Unit 2022 2021
ERSRMIEAR Efr —E-f —E-—F
Nitrogen oxides (NO) g 1,189 108
AAILIINO) =
Sulphur oxide (SO,) g 20 98
eSO, )
Particulate matter (PM) g 54 7
FERLY)(PM) =)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022




Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Climate change is gradually concern by the community.
The Group recognises that climate change poses a risk to
its business and it is committed to mitigating the effects of
climate change. Regarding GHG emissions of the Group,
scope 1 direct emissions and scope 2 and 3 indirect
emissions have mainly resulted from the mobile combustion
sources and purchased electricity. Giving the majority
of the GHG emissions of the Group come from energy
consumption, the Group place great emphasis on improving
energy efficiency and reducing energy consumption.
The Group aims to reduce or maintain the current GHC
emissions at a stable level in the next 3 years in the future
compared to this Reporting Period. The GHG emissions of
the Group during the Reporting Period were as follows:
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Type of air pollutants Units 2022 2021
R SRMER Bfu ol Jonmben —T-—fF
Scope 1! tonnes of CO,-e 6 20
HE— MR EE

Scope 27 tonnes of CO,-e 736 1,391
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Scope 3° tonnes of CO,-e 6 94
fE=" MR EE

Total GHG Emission tonnes of CO,-e 748 1,505
AEREANE M AHEE

GHG Intensity tonnes of CO,-e/million of dollars 5 7

of revenue*®
7= W =

/BB

1 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or

controlled by the Group.

2 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased

electricity consumed by the Group.

3 Scope 3: Includes all other indirect emissions that occur in the

Group’s value chain.

* As at 31 March 2022, the Group revenue is HK$154.9 million.
This data will also be used for calculation of other intensities.
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The Group does not consume a significant volume of water
in its daily operation due to its office-based nature, therefore
its business activities did not generate a material portion
of discharge into water. Since the sewage discharged by
the Group is discharged into the municipal sewage pipe
network to the regional water purification plant, water
consumed by the Group is considered sewage discharged.

The Group recognises the importance of waste reduction.
Waste management measures have been introduced to
minimise the amount of waste generated and reduce the
impact of the Group’s operation on the environment. Due to
the Group’s business operation nature, no hazardous waste
was generated during the Reporting Period.

Due to the nature of office operation, non-hazardous waste
was mainly attributed to domestic wastes of office. The
Group strives to reduce the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated and strengthen the environmental awareness
of employees by introducing various waste reduction
measures and education as mentioned in the section “Use
of Resources” of this Report. The Group aims to reduce
or maintain the current non-hazardous consumption at a
stable level in the next 3 years in the future compared to this
Reporting Period.

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group during
the Reporting Period was as follows:
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Type of waste Units 2022 2021
EREYER B e T —F
Non-hazardous waste tonnes 1.32 4.64
EERERY) 185

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonnes/million dollars of revenue 0.01 0.02
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USE OF RESOURCES

The Group considers environmental protection as an
essential component of a sustainable and responsible
business. The Group has an in-depth understanding of
the importance of safeguarding sustainable development
of the environment and attaches importance to efficient
utilisation of resources by introducing various measures
in daily business operations. The Group understand that
staff participation is the key to achieving such goals. The
Group have adopted energy and water efficiency initiatives
policies to motivate the employees to participate in resource
conservation activities.

The Group is committed to upholding high environmental
standards in order to promote environmental friendliness.
Throughout the Group, the following actions have been
taken to reduce carbon and energy footprints:

- maintain the indoor temperature of offices at an
optimal temperature;

- adopt low-emissivity glass to block ultraviolet, which
in turn reduces the power consumption of the air

conditioning system;

- choosing environmentally friendly materials and
energy-saving lightings and electrical appliances;

- switch off idle electrical appliances; and

- regular maintenance and repair for motor vehicles to
lower energy waste.

A2,
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The energy consumption of the Group during the Reporting RSB - AEBERREREFNT ¢
Period was as follows:

Energy consumption Units 2022 2021
RERE B Efr B B
Purchased electricity MWh 917 1,666
BAE JK LB
Petrol MWh 11 86
b JKELES
Natural gas MWh 13 -
RAR IKELS
Total energy consumption MWh 941 1,752
BERMENEE JKELIF
Energy intensity MWh/million dollars of revenue 6 8
BEIRE S JKER, B & T
The Group aims to reduce or maintain the current energy BAREEIEMEL - AREEEANK
consumption at the stable level in the next 3 years in the RAT% =G5 B ATREER EFER Do
future compared to this Reporting Period. FERIRTE KT ©
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Water is an important natural resource. The business of
the Group is operated in leased office premises where the
water supply is solely controlled and centrally managed
by the building management company. In this case, it is
not feasible for us to provide water consumption data as
there is no separate meter for each individual office unit
to record water usage data. In spite of this, we still activity
seek ways to reduce water consumption in daily operation
by encouraging employees to turn taps off tightly to prevent
dripping of water and giving priority to effective water-saving
products. As said, due to the Group’s office-based business
nature, there is no issue in water sourcing. The water
consumption of the Group during the Reporting Period was

2 A &R

RKEREENARER - AEENREE
MAGFTRERS  fUKEXBTER
RAEEGIREPER  FEUIBERT -
PR REFREE - REESEHRA
B5 (3 M BB AR B KR A RE 8 K K
& @EML - BAEBEEIESR
SUKEESALART LK - I B8 A RE7K
MEmM  BRERDEHDAEZES
MFEZKE o IPAEFrA - EERAKER
EBMEEUNERRERARE - WEL
BUKIREOFEE » RIS HfE - AREH
FKEWT :

as follows:

Water consumption Units 2022 2021
FKE -3 - —E-—F
Water m?® 10,113 84,743
FA7K RSB

Water intensity m&/million dollars of revenue 65 375
FkE2RE SR BB T

The Group aims to reduce or maintain the current water
consumption at a stable level in the next 3 years compared
to this Reporting Period.

Due to the business nature, the Group does not consume
a significant amount of product packaging materials as the
Group does not have any industrial productions nor any
manufacturing facilities.

EATHEMEMEL - AEREBRFANK
K B& =51 B ATH KR D M5
RIBEKF -

_H

ENEBEE - AR AKEWEEAT
EEESTAIRIERE - ARELEH
RABEMBEME -
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A3.

A4.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group understands that implementing environmental
protection can reduce operational risk and increase
business opportunities. Regarding the business nature
of the Group, the Group do not aware of any significant
impact of the business activities on the environment and
natural resources. Despite this, the Group endeavour to
consistently improve the environmental performance by
implementing the aforementioned waste reduction measures
and resource-saving initiatives. The Group will continue to
seek opportunities to further reduce emissions and resource
consumption with the aim to reduce the impacts on the
environment and natural resources to minimal.

CLIMATE CHANGE

The Group’s principal businesses have no direct effect on
facing climate change. However, climate change risk is
increasing and extreme weather is affecting the Global in
recent years. The Group believes that no one can escape
from climate change, and everyone should put effort into
tackling the issue.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and
the Group considered rainstorm and typhoon as the major
threats from the increasing climate change. The Group has
developed mitigation measures to reduce the effect raised
by extreme weather conditions such as typhoons on our
employees, properties and our operation For instance,
before the Black Rainstorm Warning Signals and No. 8
or above Tropical Cyclone Warning Signals incurred, the
Group will release employees from work and ensure there
is sufficient time for their journeys between living place and
office. The Group also conducts inspection on windows
during the typhoon and rainstorm season and ensure all
inventories will be stocked on the shelves for the protection
from the risk of water invasion.

The Group keeps on monitoring changes in regulatory,
technological and market landscape due to climate change,
including the tightening of national policies and listing rules.
The Group has been taking comprehensive measures to
deal with changing situation.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

All labour-related issues in terms of compensation,
working hours, rest periods, recruitment and promotion,
dismissal procedures, equal opportunity, diversity and anti-
discrimination are in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Labour Law of the PRC.

The Group is committed to creating a working atmosphere
free of discrimination and harassment. Discriminatory acts
or motives in all phases of employment on the grounds
of nationality, physical ability, gender, age and any other
legally protected status are strictly prohibited in the
Group. Employees are encouraged to report any unlawful
discrimination or any form of harassment. The Group
investigates expeditiously and takes appropriate corrective
actions once we have confirmed the allegations.

The Group strives to maintain the employee turnover rate
at an acceptable level so as to facilitate the accumulation
of professional skills and experience. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not become aware of any material
non-compliance relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, discriminations.

2 A &R
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As at 31 March 2022, the employee compositions (in R-E-_—F=A=+—H K& -
numbers of employees, excluding independent non- EEER - FhER R IB RIS 58
executive directors) by gender, employee category, age EEHK(LMEE (T BIEEIENITE
group and geographical region were as follows: E)HERE)NT
2022 2021

Employee structure BEREB ot - S —E- 4
By gender =I5

Male Bk 37 31

Female g 54 44
By age FEFH

Aged below 30 305% AT 25 16

Aged 30-50 30E505% 49 41

Aged 51 or above 51583 A = 17 18
By employment type 12 IE S 257

Full time o 91 75

Part time FROY - -
By employment category 1ZIES A5

Senior management SREERE 7 8

Middle management RREREE 21 12

General staff —fRET 63 55
By geographical region L FE 57 1

PRC H 77 65

Hong Kong B 14 10
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The employee turnover rate was 25% during the Reporting

Period. The employee turnover rates by gender and age

group during the Reporting Period were as follows:

2 A &R

RS - BERAEE25% ° FAFR
HEIRE BRI R FRAREI D MIES
MAEMT

Units 2022

Employment - EHfr —E-—
By gender R

— Male — 5 % 17.1

- Female — 2k % 30.6
By age RER

- Aged below 30 —30m AT % 48.8

— Aged 30-50 —30&5073% % 22.2

- Aged 51 or above =51 A % 5.4
By geographical region R EESE

-PRC — % 30.7

- Hong Kong — &8 % -
Overall e 25

Work safety is the key to the sustainable development of
the Group. We continue to strictly comply with the laws
and regulations related to occupational health and safety,
such as the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance,
in our endeavour to create a safe and healthy working
environment for employees. Rescue, fire and evacuation
drills are conducted regularly to increase employees’
awareness and involvement in accident prevention. The
Group also creates a pleasant and comfortable workplace
by carrying out various measures, including the provision
of adjustable seats and regular repair and maintenance of
office equipment.

THEZ2RAEEAFERENRRE -
BMEEREETEEBRERERES
BRUAEFR - (B EL 2 REEE
By BMAHBEIAELTE2RENTIE
IRIE o FPIE BRETTIUE - JBP RELAR
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Due to the impact of COVID-19, the Company holds a
cautious attitude on a series of prevention measures to
ensure employees with a safe and comfortable working
environment during the review period. The Group has
purchased additional cleaning and epidemic prevention
equipment and consumables such as surgical face masks,
sanitizer etc. The Group has implemented the precautionary
measures to prevent and control the spread of the
COVID-19 in the working place, including compulsory body
temperature checks, the mandatory wearing of a surgical
face mask, limit the visitor to access the office.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group in providing a safe
and healthy working environment. The occupational health
and safety statistics during the Reporting Period were as
follows:

ENNEMROTE - ARRE— RS
PriEfEReRRERE - UEREER
CEHREAN TIFREL2EE - AE
B EBARINERRIIRRENORRE
an v PIANSMRI O - BB RIS - RIED
RAEHIFREI AN TVES PR - 5%
BEE®pRER  SREAbRER
Al SREIMESNGOE - REIEEEI

WAZ -

REEHRE - AEBEY NHBERRER
2RENTIEREN B EERRES
MHEDER AR M A REELE AR
ZmEN - RIREHRE  BERERE
BN

Occupational health and safety statistics 2022 2021 2020
RERRRREHMER —EZCF —E-—F —E-THF
Number of lost days due to work injury - 43 -
ETEELAE

Number of work-related fatalities - - -
BT EBBMIET AZ

Number of work injuries incident 1 1 -

THBEHRRE
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The Group encourages employees to participate in
on-the-job training and continuing education to create
opportunity for career development. On-the-job training
is tailored to equip our workplace with the necessary
knowledge and skills relevant to work. Other than providing
diversified on-the-job training to employees and ensuring
employees meet the changing demands in the Group and
the market. By providing continuous training, employees
gain satisfaction and enjoyment from fulfilling their roles
and boost morale. Employees are required to comply
with continuous professional training and examination
requirements as stipulated in relevant regulations.

The training details during the Reporting Period were as
follows:

The percentage of employees trained

2 A &R

AEE S B E B 2 BERSII RISEE
& REEER EUE@&% ° EH@H -Jllﬁ
BB TESMMaRET -
%’]ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ;&&*ﬁf‘al{ﬂim o B&
TEE,JET LT UM ERUED - IR
BRSNS E M5 L TR L
TRz o HEERERY - BTEET
BERSRGHERNEE - BEHE
TR BTU/RETHERPIPTRTH
SEHEEEVIREAEL -

/\/\

R E HAREEIFFIT -

by gender BENBESHZIREREESL

Male Bk 56.4%
Female pegs 83.3%
The percentage of employees trained

by employment category BRERENHSHZIEEE AL

General —MET 93.7%
Middle management PARERE 78.6%
Senior management BREERE 94.4%

Average training hours for employees

by gender BB SRR B FiYE I
Male B 1.85 hours /\iF
Female pegi 2.69 hours /)N

Average training hours for employees
by employment category

ZERSNE S0 ERF BN

General
Middle management
Senior management

—RET
RAREEE
SAREEE

2.83 hours /)\#
1.71 hours /|\B
0.33 hours /) \BF
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The operations of the Group require sophisticated
training in the field of finance and the planning of property
development. Hence the Group does not rely on labour or
involve in any labour-intensive work. As such, management
is certain that the Group would not be involved in child
or forced labour. Further, the employment policies of the
Group focus on the capabilities of the particular regardless
of personal traits such as gender or ethnic groups.

The Group has strictly complied with the Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China. Overtime work is
compensated in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. According to the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Using
Child Labour and the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors and as stipulated by the
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China in terms of
employment management, there is neither child nor forced
labour in the Group’s operation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not aware of
any non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding
child labour and forced labour.

OPERATING PRACTICES

The Group’s business nature is service-oriented. The
major supply chain business partners of the Group are
construction suppliers, contractors and other office services
suppliers. Apart from taking into account the factors such
as reputation, quality and the price-performance ratio of
suppliers, the Group also priorities suppliers with a similar
value in social responsibility and environmental protection
policy. During the Reporting Period, there are 30 designated
suppliers and qualified sub-contractors in PRC for the
business of property development.

The Group has a preference on choosing products with
higher recycling value, fewer packing materials and
higher energy efficiency. Under the principles of green
procurement, we also assess the use of materials constantly
to avoid overstocking and waste of resources.
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The Group strives to create maximum value for our
customers to gain their trust and support. The Group
has outsourced the construction works in property
development projects to independent construction firms.
Thus, a comprehensive supply chain management is of
great importance for the provision of high-quality properties,
which can ensure that customers are healthy and safe.
The Group has implemented control measures at different
stages and scopes of operation to protect customers’
benefits and boost satisfaction. During the Reporting
Period, no properties sold are recalled for safety and health
reasons.

Further, internal control and compliance procedures are
in place to ensure compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
aware of any violation of any laws or regulations regarding
to the products and services we provided.

The Group has earned trusted relationships with its broad
customer base through providing dedicated customer
services. In order to provide quality service to our clients, the
Group communicates with our customers and confirms their
expectation and direction prior to project commencement
and actively coordinated with customers in the process of
providing service.

When customers lodge a complaint, the Group will make
every effort to investigate and resolve the disputes fairly
and promptly. During the Reporting Period, there are no
complaints received.

Being a service provider with a range of financial services,
the Group has access to significant financial information and
personal data of the lessee, clients and potential customers;
therefore, ensuring the privacy of customer information is
one of the issues the Group cares about the most.

2 A &R

REEL N BEFRIERAEE - AR
BN EERXS - AEEEKE
EMZIEENEETIRING TE RS
~E] - Eit - 2EAHEEEIEHNE
HEEEMENEZHUEE - BUERE
FRERZE - NEBETRMEBRE
LHEERIEHIERE  AREZFA
@ IREWEE - EREHAN - HBEE
A EHNMERLE REFIEHTA
Y e

s - HPIERAABES LA RIE
Fr o DARERESTRTBMRRBDAERER - £
BEHAR > AREHREERIAERE
B A E @ MR B B EADER
SRR

BBREHEBONTP RS - NEEFIA
HEAREFHELIEERRE - RIEHE
B TEP - AEEAEIRR MiaaE
EPETRR HREPHNMERT
M - WHERHREHBREPERERP
e

UBRFREBNEG  ARERE—S
HAT - REMEERRRAE - 18
EHIP + BEMUCEI(E TR -

ER— RIS BIRBORME - AKE
BEAEBRAREA - BREREERTPA
EBUBERRBEAZR - Bt - REE
FEMILRDAREGRRERNER 2

— o

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
SERITHER

57




58

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BN - g R RS

The Group has formulated a set of privacy principal
in collection, retention, use, security, openness and
accessibility of information to ensure all lessees’ information
received is only for its intended purpose and to prevent
information leakage, such as:

- Access control to all information of lessees;

- Requiring employees not to retain and disclose any
confidential information about the Group’s business
and other sensitive, confidential data to any third
party; and

- Requiring employees not to obtain any unnecessary
information from the lessees and its associated
parties.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not notice any
violations of laws or regulations regarding customer data
protection and advertising relating to the services provided.

It is the unwavering principle of the Group to combat
corruption and advocate integrity and self-discipline. The
Group continues to strictly comply with the laws and
regulations relating to bribery prevention, extortion, fraud
and money laundering, such as the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance.

A mechanism for declaration of interest is in place by the
Group to prohibit employees engagement in any investment
activities that collide with the interest of the Group, and
requires employees to report any situations that may involve
conflict of direct or indirect interest with the Group. There
is also a whistle-blowing policy to provide a channel for
employees to report any suspicious cases of unethical
behaviours in writing. The Group would report the cases
to the authorities if the case was found to be sufficiently
supported with evidence. During the Reporting Period, no
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer, the Group and our employees.
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The Group strictly implements a series of policies and
procedures to prevent and detect money laundering and
terrorist financing. Following measures have been taken to
prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist financing:

— carries out know-your-client procedures by verifying
customers’ identity with reference to a reliable and
independent source of documents;

- reports any suspicious transactions to the relevant
government department; and

- repayments and deposits are only made by cheque,
bank transfer with customers’ bank accounts.

During the Reporting Period, The Group did not become
aware of any non-compliances of laws and regulations
relating to corruption, fraud, money laundering and bribery
in Hong Kong and China.

COMMUNITY

As a socially responsible company, the Group is committed
to understanding the needs of the communities in which
the Group operate. The Group encourage our employees to
pursue their personal passions and dedicate their time and
skills to supporting local communities. The Group strive to
develop long-term relationships with the stakeholders and
bring a positive impact on community development.
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPls) Section

FREEE c BE - —REZRABWEFEFREYER 1]

A. Environmental

A BE

A1: Emissions

A1 BER)

General Disclosure “Emissions”

—MRBEE [HER

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data “Emissions — Air Pollutant Emissions”

RARAERIEIR  BEUIRRI MARRRHE R (B — =5 2R

A1.1

KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas
Emission”

BRENER  AERBAFHMER(HMER)BE [HER— R EREEHER

A1.2

KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity Not applicable — The Group
generates no hazardous waste.

BRENIER EAREEEDHESER(MER)EE TER-—AKREVREEEEDE

A1.3 Ao

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity “Emissions — Hazardous and
Non-hazardous Wastes”

RRENIEER MEAEREEREVEENR(MER)EE (B — A EREEREEY ]

Al.4

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas
Emission”

BASHERUETR  HIUREHEBE O FE e B PR R [HER— R ER BB

A1.5

KPI'A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, “Emissions — Hazardous and

reduction initiatives and results achieved Non-hazardous Wastes”
BRENIER  WREEAERESTEEVNIE R R TR (B —BEREEEEY]
A1.6
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2 A &R

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

FEER  BE  —RESRAEANEFRFERERER) 11

A2: Use of Resources

A2 - EIRER
General Disclosure “Use of Resources”
—RRIREE [ &R
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity  “Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption”
BRERIER O RENISMEER SEEERERERTE [ ERER —sRERE]
A2.1
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water
Consumption”
BRERIER RRKEREE [EREA—KERE]
A2.2
KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and “Use of Resources — Energy
results achieved Consumption”
RASAERURIR  HIARIRGE PR i K PR K [&IRER — R RFER |
A2.3
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for  “Use of Resources — Water
purpose, water eﬁiciency initiatives and results achieved Consumption”
BRENIEE  HEICkEGERKREE B EARERE - BKEEE & PTERR [EIREER —K*EM
A2.4
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, “Use of Resources — Use of
if applicable with reference to per unit produced Packing Material”
BRENIEER  HEnAReEPHONEE R(RER)BEEEUESE [EIRIER —BRMEHEA]
A2.5
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
3 RIERARAEIR
General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural
Resources”
—MRBEEE [RIERRAER]
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment No significant impact of activities
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them on the environment and natural

resources was noted.
RSRIERMUEIE HIERETRHRBLRAREFENERFEULTENEEEETE TAEREEIDEIRERRAE
A3.1 RI7TE) IREE R E -

A4: Climate Change
A4 RIREIL

General Disclosure “Climate Change”

— R [ SRR

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have No significant impact on climate
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the change was noted.

actions taken to manage them
BARAENIEER WA ENARHETABKEENERRKEBEE - AMPIRIR WAREREREECHEATE -
A4 BRIP 2 E I H1TE)

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
SERITHER
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

TEEE  BE  —REESRFAERMETEGRRENER) =i}

B. Social

B. it ®

Employment and Labour Practices

BRERRBIER

B1: Employment

B1: (&%

General Disclosure “Employment”

—MRI%RER [MEfR=]

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment category, age group “Employment”
and geographical region

BRENIER MR BEER - FERAER MihERIFE D EEB A [MEfR=]

B1.1

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and “Employment”
geographical region

FRAETIEE R FRARNRMERSESHEBRAE [MEfE]

B1.2

B2: Health and Safety
B2 : ZRMEL S
General Disclosure

— MR

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities

BREBUEER REITHMAZSRLEE
B2.1
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury

BiENIER  BAIGIEAIERH

B2.2

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored

BRENIEER WATRRABRREE 2R BELERAN

B2.3

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

“Health and Safety”

Rz 2 ]

No case of work-related fatality was
noted.

WARBREATTHAFER -

1 case of work injury with no lost
days to work was noted.

1IRIGEZRE - TAREHRIBRTIER
2 o

“Health and Safety”

M2z ]
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2 A &R

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

FEER  BE  —RESRAEANEFRFERERER) 11

B3: Development and Training
B3 : #R& N iE7l

General Disclosure “Development and Training”
—RRIRER [ B R al ]

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained by gender and employee category “Development and Training”
BRENEER RURREEERIEISHNXIEEBRS L [ B/ K aEal ]

B3.1

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and “Development and Training”

employee category
BRERER  RUFIRESRMNEIDHNEEE Tl XM FERE [ 3R R aEal ]
B3.2

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : B TR

General Disclosure “Labour Standards”
—RRIRER [$T2R]]
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child  “Labour Standards”
and forced labour
BRERIER R EEENNEEARRIEAETRAH ST [ 85 TR ]
B4.1
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered No non-compliance with relevant

laws and regulations related
to recruitment of child labour
or forced labour practices was

noted.
BRERUER TR ERBEAR ERZET AR R WARBERFMARETEFERET
B4.2 SRl % 1T AMMERERE R
HREIES o
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

FEER B —RESRAEANEFRFERERER) =6

Operating Practices

HETHR

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : (g EIR

General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management”
—MRBEEE [fHEsRE e |

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region “Supply Chain Management”
BENIER RMIREREE S NHEREE [MrEsE ]

B5.1

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of “Supply Chain Management”

suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored

FRENEER WAZEHERNER  ERAEEROHERHE  BEkER [MrEEETE ]

B5.2 AR

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks ~ “Supply Chain Management”
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored

BRENIEER  WAAUERIHERTREAMEGARNER  ARBEEEREF  [HERERE ]

B5.3

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable “Supply Chain Management”
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

BARAENIEER  HARAURYCEHERRHRERRERMRBNER - AREHER [MHrEgEEse |

B5.4 B8N
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Section

FEER  BE  —RESRAEENEFRFERERER) =6

B6: Product Responsibility
B6: EmAE

General Disclosure “Product Responsibility”
—RRIRER [EmET]
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for No product sold or shipped subject
safety and health reasons to recalls for safety and healty
reasons.
BgENER ChHERbEERESTEZ: MERREAMARKN A DL TEEHENHEERER S M
B6.1 FRIREmZARL -
KPI B6.2 Number of products and services related complaints received and how No products and services related
they are dealt with complaints received.
BRENIER ERAHERNMRBORFREBENEE TR W AR B o RIS ER ©
B6.2
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual  “Product Responsibility”
property rights
BREDIEER BT RREMEEENREER [EmEET]
B6.3
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures “Product Responsibility”
BRESIER B ERTREROYIER [EmBEE]
B6.4
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, “Product Responsibility”
how they are implemented and monitored
BRENIEER  HUHBEERREREEE - BEkERESR [EmEE]
B6.5
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs)

FEER B —RESRAEANEFRFERERER)

Section

=

B7: Anti-corruption

B7 : K&)5

General Disclosure

—RINE
KPI B7.1

FRBHA ISR
B7.1
KPI B7.2

BARARUEIR
B7.2
KPIB7.3

FASHERUEIR
B7.3

Community
Zan

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and
the outcomes of the case
RoEHNRBITASEEEBRENEEREDEERGEA R
E L
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures,
how they are implemented and monitored
MBI e R 2R - BERERA

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff
HlmEE KB TREMRESE

B8: Community Investment

B8 : (@I E

General Disclosure

—RINE
KPI B8.1

FARAERUEIR
B8.1

KPI B8.2
FARAARUER
B8.2

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport)

FIEREE(NHE  RIREHE BIHK - E2F - Xt
B5)

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area

HEITHREMBANER (WS ERERE)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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“Anti-corruption”

[R&E)5]

No concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices was noted.

WREBERCHERNESEERMN -

“Anti-corruption”

[REF]

“Anti-corruption”

[RE)5)

“Community Investment”
[tE&RE]

“Community Investment”

[tERE ]




The Directors present this report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2022 analysed by reportable segments are set out in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and
Analysis of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year under review using financial key performance indicators
is provided in the Financial Summary on pages 2 and 3 of this annual
report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 91 and 92 of
this annual report. No interim dividend was paid during the year. The
Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2022.

Movements in the share capital and convertible bonds during the
year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Notes 29 and 30 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year ended 31 March 2022 are set out on pages 95 to 97 of this
annual report and Note 40(a) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

As at 31 March 2022, there is no reserve of the Company which is
available for distribution to Shareholders (2021: nil).
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Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 and 3 and on pages 14 to 16 respectively of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 8% of the Group’s total revenue and the aggregate
amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 93% of the Group’s total purchases.
None of the Directors, their associates nor any Shareholder (whom to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or five largest customers.

The Group employed 91 full-time staff under its subsidiaries globally as at
31 March 2022 (2021: 75). Total staff costs amounted to approximately
HK$20 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: HK$15 million).
The remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the
basis of job nature, market trend, company performance and individual
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a
discretionary basis, retirement schemes and the share option scheme
of the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”).

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws of the
Company although there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring
the Group to different levels of success.

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build on our strong
relationships within our client base. Our mission is to provide the
finest service to our customers and the Group is constantly looking
ways to improve customer relations through enhanced services.
Regarding the securities trading and loan financing businesses,
the Group has no major suppliers. Whereas regarding the other
principal businesses, the Group has maintained good relationship
with the suppliers to ensure their continued support to the Group in the
foreseeable future.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company repurchased
225,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$17,000. All these
repurchased shares were cancelled during the year.

The Directors consider that the above share repurchases are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2022
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Xiaohua

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
Mr. Cao Kuangyu
Mr. Ip Chi Wai

In accordance with bye-law 112 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Su
Xiaonong and Mr. Ip Chi Wai shall retire from office and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The directors who have served on the boards of directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022 and
up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk
Mr. Su Xiaonong
Ms. Lo Kwan

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors are set out below:

(@ The annual salary of Mr. Li Kwong Yuk was adjusted from
HK$3,900,000 to HK$3,900,000 plus RMB120,000 with effect
from 1 April 2021.

(b) The annual salary of Mr. Su Xiaonong was adjusted from
HK$451,666.69 and RMB154,680.07 to HK$560,000 and
RMB74,318.19 with effect from 1 April 2021.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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(©)  Mr. Wang Xiaohua resigned as director of & /s 2 Rl B/ HE
TR AR A R (Guangzhou Ruili Kormee Automatic Electronics
Co., Ltd.) (being a subsidiary of 53z &£ @A R A & (Ruii Group
Co., Ltd) which was previously listed on NASDAQ) and J&3IIT1 .
Al 24 YRHT AR A F] (Shenzhen Ecomann Biotechnology Co.,
Ltd.) with effect from 20 May 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of their independence
during the year ended 31 March 2022 and all of them are still being
considered to be independent.

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party Transactions” as
set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no contracts
of significance relating to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had no contract
entered into in respect of the management or administration of the
overall business or any material business.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, none of the Directors had
interests in business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying
shares of the Company

RIZBZZF=A=+—H ARAEFKETRT
BABRARRR R EMEAE(ERELEFMPE

Pl (T B R AARIEH ) FEXVEL) 2 B iy - HHEM
D RESF A CREE S BRI EXVE
FTRESHEANEGARRR RB R s SAR
(BREREES B R 2 A BIGRSUGRS AER
1EA 2 Em MAR) - B BRFR AR BIRE
BB GROIEILGNERATFE 2 ELMA
ZHEEMRR  SRBEEETRIASITHEARA

NEE R P Bk RORRIAE -

REQBEBERREERD 2HFR

Approximate
percentage of
Number of total number of
Number of underlying issued shares
Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total of the Company
5527
BER&TRA
#ye
3] 53 HiEREE R E “y #nask
(Note 1)
CiEa))
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr. Li") Interest of controlled 3,066,645,405 - 3,066,645,406
SRELE(ERE]) corporation (Note 2)
Rt EEER (F¥3E2)
Beneficial owner 222,040,000 1,232,000,000 1,454,040,000
ERBBA (Note 3)
GER)
4,5620,685,405 61.45%
Mr. Su Xiaonong Beneficial owner 14,655,000 50,000,000 64,655,000 0.88%
HERLE BREBA (Note 4)
UED)
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Notes:

Based on 7,356,783,015 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2022.

These shares were held by WCIL as to 3,053,170,405 shares, WAML as to
11,475,000 shares and WMGL as to 2,000,000 shares. WCIL, WAML and
WMGL were wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Li. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr.
Li was deemed to be interested in these 3,066,645,405 shares.

These underlying shares comprised (i) 7,000,000 share options granted on 11
April 2019 under the Share Option Scheme at the exercise price of HK$0.456
per share and (i) 1,225,000,000 conversion shares which will be issued and
allotted upon full conversion of the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$980,000,000 issued by the Company to Mr. Li on 26 March 2018 at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.80 per share.

These underlying shares were share options granted by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme on 11 April 2019 at the exercise price of HK$0.456
per share.

BiaE -
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As at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of the
persons or corporations other than the Director or chief executive of
the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying
shares of the Company

RZE-_—F=ZA=Z+—H BARFEEREE
TTBABFRTA  TIALSCEE(RNARIESRHE
BITHA BBRIN) AR B B0 5 A8 B AR 1 Pk
BERSNARAIRIEES RS KP E336157F
EzERMRzEERABTT

REQRBEBERREERD 2HR

Approximate
percentage of
Number of total number of
Name of substantial Number of underlying issued shares
Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares Total of the Company
EELT
BRTRI
o
TERFNE BB 40 HiERS A HEBR & E Hy @;hask
(Note 1)
(BtzE1)
WCIL (Note 2) Beneficial owner 3,053,170,405 - 3,053,170,405 41.50%
XBEAR(KiFE2) BaBA
China State Shipbuilding Interest of a controlled 908,685,000 - 908,685,000 12.35%
Corporation Limited* (Note 3) corporation
TEMNERERAR(MFS)  XEHEEES
China Shipbuilding Capital Limited  Beneficial owner 908,685,000 - 908,685,000 12.35%
(Note 3) EnEAA

PERAEABRAF (FHE3)

* For identification purpose only
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Notes:

1. Based on 7,356,783,015 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31
March 2022.

2. WCIL was wholly owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li
Kwong Yuk was deemed to be interested in these shares.

3. China Shipbuilding Capital Limited was wholly owned by B fEEER A
7] (China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited*). By virtue of the SFO, = Bl f
& EAFPRAF (China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited*) was deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by China Shipbuilding
Capital Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
the Company.

On 21 September 2012, the Shareholders approved the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules, are
as follows:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to

grant the share options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

For identification purpose only

Report of the Directors

EHRERGE

BiaE -

1. BER-_E - —F=A=1+—HBE%177,356,783,015/%
AAREBBATE -

2. XBEARFTHEALERERES - REEFNFER
Pl FREFERER/RZEROPHERES -

3. FHEMMELAERATATEMMERERARZE
A - REEFRBEERN - PERBEEBRARF
B AN T EMAEARFRARFE 2 AR B BH P
R

bBREXFIHEEN RZEZ—_F=A=+—H -
HRARREEREBITBABMA - SIEEMALT
AR B2 BRAD SR BB AR 19 R B B R 8RR AN A )
BB E RIS SN FEI6IEFE 2 B MRz
WmIOAR  NERRMEEREWNSIEEMAEL T
EARRRRRAE LIRE 2 F 2 TR AN E
B5%3 A R -

N_TE—"FAA-+—H  RERIERNEIRE
A8 - RIB LT ARRIIEE 2 BT 81 2 E IR
MEWT

BRI EESARERSER2EEREBER
8 (ERNEFHAKE 2 AR BB DR -

* 25

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
SERITHER

75




76

Report of the Directors
RGN E

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant share options

to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible Participants”) to

subscribe for shares in accordance with the provisions of the Share

Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
the Directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);

any Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), any Subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or
entity who in the opinion of the Directors has contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group;

any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of
the Group; and

any company wholly-owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon

exercise of the share options and the share options granted under any

other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or

outstanding share options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall

not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the Company for the time being.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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In respect of any particular option, such period as the Directors may
determine, may not be later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant share options.

There is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme
for holding of the share options before it can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be regarded as having been accepted when the duplicate
of the letter by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing
on 21 September 2012 to make an offer for the grant of a share option.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 September
2019, the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme
was refreshed and approved by the then Shareholders to allow the
Company to issue a maximum of 735,306,071 share options under the
Share Option Scheme, representing approximately 9.99% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 7,356,783,015 shares) as
at 31 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, (i) no share options were
granted; (ii) 467,000,000 share options lapsed; and (iii) no share
options were exercised, cancelled and re-classified. The total number
of the shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
1,452,306,071, representing approximately 19.74% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 7,356,783,015 shares) as at the
date of this report.
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HREFHREE
The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option REBEEZZ_—F=-A=+—HIEFEAN ' REE
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2022 are shown below: IR EIFT I < AR 2 BB BN TR
Number of share options
fREsE
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At Exercise price
Name or category 1 April during during during during 31 March Date of grant Validity period of share
of participant 2021 the year the year the year the year 2022 of share options of share options options
AZEC-F RIBZZE Wk
SHENZIEN MA-B REARRH REATE  REMER  REREN ZASH-R AW BREFYH BRETER
HKS per share
BiE%
Executive Directors
HiTEs
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 7,000,000 - - - - 7000000 11-4-2019 11-4-2019 0 10-4-2024 0456
FRERE “E-NERAT-B ZE-NERAT-RE
“ZmEMATA
Mr. Su Xiaonong 50,000,000 - - - - 50000000 11-4-2019 11-4-2019 10 10-4-2024 0456
BREEE ZE-NEEAT-8 0 ZE-NERAL-RE
“Z-WEMATA
Sub-total
st 57,000,000 - - - - 57000000
78 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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HRFHEE
Number of share options
fikiEsA
At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At Exercise price
Name or category 1 April during during during during 31 March Date of grant Validity period of share
of participant 2021 the year the year the year the year 2022  of share options of share options options
RIBZ-% RIBZZE Wk
SHINZIER MA-B REARRH REATE  REMER  REREN ZASt-R AR BREFYH BRETER
HKS per share
v
Others
it
Employees 231,000,000 - - - - 281,000,000 11-4-2019 11-4-2019 0 10-4-2024 0456
8 “E-NEBAT-B ZE-NERAT-HE
“TREMATA
Other eligible participants 467,000,000 - - - (467,000,000 - 19-12-2016 19-12-2016 to 18-12-2021 0.738
HtRERsEE ZE-RETZATAR ZE-EtAThAZ
ZBT-E+ZAT/\R
100,000,000 - - - - 100,000,000 19-10-2017 19-10-2017 to 18-10-2022 0.488
“E-ETAthE ZE-tEfAthAZ
ZRCCETATIR
329,000,000 - - - - 329,000,000 11-4-2019 11-4-2019 10 10-4-2024 0456
S-ASRAT-R CT-NEMAT-RE
“TmEMATA
Sub-total
U5 1,127,000,000 - - - (467,000,000 660,000,000
Total
a5t 1,184,000,000 - - - (467,000,000 717,000,000

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the

dates on which the share options were granted, i.e. 16 December
2016, 18 October 2017 and 10 April 2019, were HK$0.74, HK$0.46

and HK$0.455 per share respectively.
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Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal course
of business of the Group are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. None of the related party transactions constituted
discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-exempted
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

Details of the Company’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “OUTSTANDING
CONVERTIBLE BONDS” in Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 10 to 12 of this annual report and the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” on pages 74 to 78 of this report, at no time during
the year ended 31 March 2022 were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate.

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out on pages 21 to 37 in this annual report.

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between
the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization of
greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external
communications by means of telephone, emails and conferences or
such other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, we are able to minimize physical travelling and printing.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Detailed information about the Group’s environmental policies and
performance for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 38 to 65 of this
annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge to the
external environments. The Group will invest in projects and investments
based on the strategic plan in order to cope with the market demand
and expectation. Given the rapid change of unforeseeable external
environments in the financial and equity markets, the Group is facing
significant strategic risks on its investments when changing the strategic
plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational risks

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,
are adequately managed.

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 34(b) to the consolidated
financial statements headed “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” - “Financial
risk management objectives and policies”.

Save for disclosed in the section headed “OUTSTANDING
CONVERTIBLE BONDS” in Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 10 to 12 of this annual report and the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” on pages 74 to 78 of this report, the Company has
not entered into any equity-linked agreements during the year ended 31
March 2022.
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Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of
the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities, which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and
liabilities associated with defending any proceedings which may be
brought against Directors and other officers of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

Elite Partners CPA Limited was appointed as the Auditor, following
the retirement of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, at the annual general
meeting held on 30 September 2020.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been
audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited, which retires and, being eligible,
offers itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting for the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as
the Auditor.

By order of the Board

LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B3 7 A BB A

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

elite
< partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT
LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DINGYI
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 212,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

B R FEARBERMNEEAE - REHAH
BHMBHRRNETRAERNETER - ELEEHE
EHMEFTERAHIBHRRE D ABRRETRE

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

B o M TS ELEREHREBNER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Impairment Assessment on Loan and Interest

Receivables

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

MRFHER

P M 55 30 R F1) B i ik 4 B £

A2 A GRS

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMmE MM EEREEHER

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had loan and interest
receivables measured at amortised cost amounted to
approximately HK$2,037,040,000 and allowance for
impairment of approximately HK$60,423,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2022.

RZEZZF=A=+—H EBEEBEREEXLTED
FEWE F K F B4 A 2,087,040,000 T K REEZT
ZoF =A==t AEFERERARRRER GBS
60,423,0007T °©

Management judgment is required in assessing and
determining the recoverability of loan and interest receivables
and adequacy of allowance made using the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”.
ERERANRBEBMGREENEOR eI A EAE
HEEBE([RHREERHE R LETREER R
) S AT U B 1 DA 2 Pt HR i A O 7 S MR B HE 21U o

We have identified the ECL for loan and interest receivables
as a key audit matter because the determination of ECL for
loan and interest receivables are based on management’s
estimation by taking into account the credit loss experience,
repayment history, financial background and financial
condition of each borrower, all of which involve a significant
degree of management judgment.

B2 B E A E’ﬁéﬁm:fﬂééﬂ%;&%lﬁ%ﬁﬁf%?%?
F2H DEABTRBEFENENEREEEER
EEREEGAREERANCEBRELR  BRESL - EIJH‘%)EJ
SRMBARRELEME - FIEEEA P REEREHED
BRIEE -
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Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of loan and interest receivables included the
following:
BMEEEKRES
18

XM SR EFENEZREFRENATS

- Understanding the procedures performed by
management, including periodic review on overdue
receivables and the assessment of expected credit
losses allowance on the loan and interest receivables;

- THWREEEETNERET  SETHERBHEKRE

NeHE W ER LA SRR E SRR

- Understanding and evaluating the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness of the
model selection and key measurement parameters
determination;

—  TEREMHEREEEETENERL T
ERRTENE2HNETHEREAE

Gt

- Understanding the management’s identification
of significant increase in credit risk, defaults and
credit-impaired loans, corroborated management’s
explanation with supporting evidence for the historical

information;

- THREREZNEARRBEZEEN  BOREHLERE
ERENERNAE  WABRTERNIBEERE
EIRENRE




Impairment Assessment on Loan and Interest
Receivables (Continued)

Key audit matter

Bt =n

Independent Auditor’s Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z=F = —4F =H=+—HIFEZ

PR 55 7 B 71 B B ik {E A 4 (#8)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BBt EERREHER

Assessing the reasonableness of economic indicator
selection, economic scenarios and weightings
application, assessed the reasonableness of the
estimation by comparing with industry data for
forward-looking measurement;

AHERBETEE REBRREERANAEIL
AR AR - AR ABE AR B RITE
2

Checking major data inputs used in the expected
credit losses models, on sample basis, to the Group’s
record; and
HARKEREMEREEREEEEEAMANEE
BABIE © &

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent external valuer taking into account
its experience and qualifications.
AHEB N AL ER R B )RR B - @ BHL
BN ER -
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Assessment of Net Realisable Value of Properties
under Development and Completed Properties

Held for Sale

Refer to Notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

MREHER

S5 BETM

ALHA G IRMEE1819

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMmEmAEEREETER

The Group’s properties under development (“PUD”) and
completed properties held for sale (“PHS”) amounted to
approximately HK$2,145,681,000 and HK$108,828,000
respectively as at 31 March 2022. The management
assessed the net realisable value (“NRV”) of PUD and PHS
as at 31 March 2022 and the carrying amounts of PUD and
PHS were stated at the lower of cost and NRV.
RZBZZF=A=+—0 AEEZBRTWE(ERE
RYE D ERFERENERTIVE(HELENEERTY
¥ ) o R4 BB 2,145,681,0007T &5 108,828,0007T °
BEEENR-_E-—_F=A=1—HBEERFWERRE
HENBERTYENAIZRFE(NAIERFE])  #ESP
MERFELENE R TYENREERA R F
BzRIEETER -

The assessment requires management judgement and
estimates. The risk in relation to assessment of net realisable
value of properties under development and properties held
for sale is considered relatively higher due to high degree of
management judgement.

AR REEEF L HE LA - BREMEERTOER

FELEWEAERFENEEEENE HE MRS
ﬂﬁ*ﬁirjﬁﬁmﬂﬂx

We have identified the assessment of net realisable value
of properties under development and completed properties
held for sales as a key audit matter because the assessment
requires management judgement and estimates. The
assessment of net realisable value of properties under
development and properties held for sale is considered
relatively higher due to high degree of management
judgement.
ERNEREARERTVELFELHENERIMELZA
SR FE G EL HE A B SEENEETER
BRETEE - ENEEENSEHE  BERPYERS
TEHEME 2 TE IR FEN L ERERAEERS °
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Our audit procedures in relation to the assessment of net
realisiable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale included the following:
BPARTEERTYREESIFHENSRIMERAIERE
FENBEZIEF BN TRIE

- Evaluating management’s assessment by comparing,
on a sample basis, the estimated selling price
less selling expenses and the estimated costs to
completion used in the assessment with the price and
cost data from recent transactions or available market
information;

—  FHMEEREEELARE - AR AR Ae G
FrEEREERY RIAFHE TR AERBRAR S5,

A TS E R R B ETTHE -

- Obtaining understanding from management and
performing assessment on the latest status and
development plans of the underlying property projects,
such as budgeted estimated costs to completion
approved by management; and

- RERETHEBEYERERSIBRNLRERTE
(Pl EIR EHERTREE TR TARAR) - Wttt ETT
EREIN

- Checking management’s adjustments to recoverable
amounts of the underlying property projects if their
carrying amounts are below net realisable value.

—  HAEEYEEAREEENITERFE - AREE
BEHREYEER TRE S RBIELRE -
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The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

EFAHAMENAE - BN BRFRANE
F o BT BREE M ERER MR PN RS -

BAEEHTHREANBERLL TRERLMER - &,
P THZFEMERBER TR ANEF G o

‘BERMHAHMBHRENEN  RFINEEEHE
EEHMER - Flphiet  TEEMEHMITES
HH BRI MERT BRI THOBERFE
BEABBREUTFEERBREMNER - ERN
HAEATHIIE  IRBMRSEMENFES
Rl - LB EREZEE - £t mE - &,
P90 AT FE 3R ©
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concemn.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Wai Nam, William with practising certificate
number: PO5957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022

10th Floor

8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
GLRCETE S

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—ECF —ET—F
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 BETT BT
Revenue WA 6 154,984 226,069
Cost of sales SHER R (1,866) (17,681)
Gross profit EF 153,118 208,388
Other income Hp YA 8 1,486 2,506
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HEREBEERZANERE
fair value through profit or loss TREEFE (60) (993)
(Loss)/gain arising from financial assets at RESERIEAANERE Y
fair value through profit or loss TRYEEEL 2 (F58), WEs (670) 32,688
Gain on modification of convertible bonds BT AT AR E S 2 Was - 69,321
(Provision)/reversal of allowance for (FHR), HBEEKEZREFEZ
impairment of loan and interest receivables SIE B (60,423) 19,696
Selling and distribution costs $HE R A (11,228) (14,490)
General and administrative expenses — RITEER (42,624) (45,359)
Finance costs BhE A 9 (121,327) (156,475)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT(EE) BT 10 (81,728) 115,276
Income tax expense FrfSfi &R 12 (19,598) (72,341)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to the RATEEANELRFEE
owners of the Company (18) &F (101,326) 42,935
(Loss)/earnings per share SR(ER) 27
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR REE B 14 (1.38) 0.58
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o F 18 £ B Hfth &5 5 Wi £ 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

2022 2021
B —ET—4F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BIE) 27 (101,326) 42,935
Other comprehensive income FEHMESKA
for the year
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently ~— E#EAJfEEH #IE2 15282
to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange difference arising on translating MEGINEREE ZEHE5E
foreign operations 102,069 215,101
Total other comprehensive income FEHMERE WA BEE
for the year 102,069 215,101
Total comprehensive income for the year RATHB ANEEFERE
attributable to the owners of the Company N CLE 743 258,036
92  DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—ECF —ET—F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE BT BT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investment property B 15 15,523 15,763
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KR 16 11,485 14,295
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 6,360 10,543
Prepayments and deposits FERIERES 22 1,231 2,881
Deferred tax assets BIETRIREE 32 54,791 39,573
89,390 83,055
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 21 7,250 7,250
Properties under development BEERAYE 18 2,145,681 1,001,215
Completed properties held for sale FEHENER IR 19 108,828 106,232
Other receivables, prepayments E YRR - TARTFRIE K
and deposits e 22 61,995 222 451
Loan and interest receivables FEWE R R B 23 1,817,875 2,195,162
Financial asset at fair value through RIEEREANBEREZ
profit or loss SREE 20 33,043 34,222
Cash and cash equivalents RekAEEFEY 24 152,120 306,515
4,326,792 3,873,047
Current liabilities nBAR
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER R 26 36,664 47,033
Contract liabilities BHERE 26 1,522,042 741,020
Amount due to a related company JE —EIREE R RIERR 25 41,091 15,239
Tax payables FESBETE 156,282 137,742
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 2,418 7,735
Convertible bonds AR ES 30 893,329 327,971
Other bond HiEH 31 279,500 -
Promissory note EEgT I 28 5,639 5,389
2,936,965 1,282,129
Net current assets REEESE 1,389,827 2,590,918
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHAR 1,479,217 2,673,973
S A4 3 A RS 93
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& PF B 3R DL R
For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE
2022 2021
—ECHF T
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T BT T ST T
Capital and reserves & B s
Share capital &7 29 73,568 73,570
Reserves it 1,401,027 1,400,299
Total equity HiEa 1,474,595 1,473,869
Non-current liabilities ERBAMR
Convertible bonds AR ES 30 - 813,277
Bank borrowing HRITIERK 27 - 383,884
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 1,357 -
Deferred tax liabilities FIETRIEAE 32 3,265 2,943
4,622 1,200,104
1,479,217 2,673,973
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised ABHMBRERN_E-_—_FA=tHHESEZI

for issue by the board of directors on 30 June 2022 and are signed on

its behalf by:

LI Kwong Yuk
EXIE
Director

EFE
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Attributable to the owners of the Company

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
A DF BE £ 52 B &

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

LG PN T
Convertible
bonds -
Capital Share Exchange equity
redemption option Other fluctuation ~ conversion
Share Share reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  Accumulated
capital premium (Notei) (Note iii) (Note i) (Note iv) (Note v) losses  Total equity
- [E] ERHD  TRERES-
B WREGH Rt i ERBRGE
k& Eham (MsEi) (P &giii) (Magii) (iiv) (Msv) AHER #a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT ERTT EWTT ERTT ERTT TR ERTT EWTT TR
At 1 April 2021 RZE--&
mA-A 73,510 3,313,723 14 204,914 (795,421) (5,408) 728,704 (2,136,227) 1,473,869
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - - - - (101,326) (101,326)
Other comprehensive ERialE
income for the year
-Exchange differencearisngon  ~REBNEREEZ
translating foreign operations EXZE = - - - - 102,069 - - 102,069
Total comprehensive ERRANRAT
income for the year - - - - - 102,069 - (101,326) 43
Shares repurchased and cancelled ~ RIDED Rt @ (15) - = = = = o (17)
Share options lapsed BRuERE - - - (142,064) - - - 142,064 -
At 31 March 2022 i
=h=t-H 73,568 3,313,708 14 152,850 (795,421) 96,661 728,704 (2,095,489) 1,474,595
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
1 B BE 4 52 B %

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

YN 2PN 3
Convertible
bonds -
Capital Share Exchange equity
redemption option Other fluctuation conversion
Share Share reserve reserve resenve reserve reseve  Accumulated
capital premium (Note ) (Note i (Note ) (Note ) (Note ) losses Total equity
B1EE EiR® TakES-
B EhEbs ittt B EREHE

i RiVEE (&) iE2) k2 (Kt (Hakv) ZitEE g
NOTES HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
i BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BB EETT BETT

At1 Apri 2020 RoEoTE
TA-A 73570 3,313,723 14 443,765 (795,421) (220,509) 824,849 (2,424,158) 1,215,833
Loss for the year EERR - - - - - - - 42,08 42,93
Other comprehensive EREMsAlE
income for the year
-Exchange diference arising 85/ EKES
on translating foreign JERER
operations - - - - - 215,101 - - 215,101
Total comprehensive ERRANRAT
income for the year - - N - - 215,101 - 42,936 268,036
Redemption of convertiole R ATk B35
honds 30(1) - - - - - - (26,361) 26,361 -
Modifcation of comveridle Tk
bonds 20 - - - - - - (69,784) 69,784 -
Share options lapsed BRuERE - - - (148,851) - - - 148851 -
At 31 March 2021 R-E--%
=A=t+-H 73,570 3313723 14 294914 (795,421) (5,408) 728,704 (2,136,227) 1,473,869
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Notes:

(i)

(i)

(v)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

O B 45 5 ) R

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

Capital redemption reserve in accordance with law of Bermuda which has been
paid out of the distributable reserves of the Company.

Other reserve represents:

(@) The change in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in loss of control over those subsidiaries; and

(b) The recognition of deemed contribution from Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (“Mr.
Li”) under merger accounting upon the completion of acquisition of
United Faith Investments Limited (“United Faith”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “United Faith Group”) on 26
March 2018, representing the differences amongst the investment cost
for the acquisition of United Faith Group and the amount due to related
companies, and elimination of the share capital of the United Faith.

Share option reserve represents the fair value of unexercised share options
granted by the Company recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy of share-based payments set out in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The convertible bonds-equity conversion reserve represents the value of the
unexercised equity component of convertible bonds issued by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for convertible
bonds set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
aHBleRaEkR

Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

2022 2021
—ECF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEE
(Loss)/profit before tax B (B1R), /B A (81,728) 115,276
Adjustments for: BFRBEATEIAE
Bank interest income RITHBUA (722) (624)
Gain on modification of convertible bonds BT RES 2 e - (69,321)
Finance costs BLE KR 121,327 166,475
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMEBITE
equipment 3,317 3,269
Depreciation of investment property EMENE 892 843
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 9,186 9,800
Loss/(gain) arising from financial assets at RERREANERE 27
fair value through profit or loss BEEEZEER (W) 670 (32,688)
Provision/(reversal) of allowance for FHR (R R E R &
impairment of loan and interest receivables &8 2 G {E B 60,423 (19,696)
Operating cash flows before movements LEEEPRI LIRS
in working capital ME 113,365 163,334
Increase in properties under development R A YERLN (1,102,149) (427,875)
Decrease in completed properties held for BERECRTYERD
sale 1,545 17,681
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, E A EUERSR - TR RIER
prepayments and deposits mERL(38m) 168,544 (138,589)
Decrease/(increase) in loan and interest FEUCE TR R R B A, (3840)
receivables 437,966 (36,455)
Changes on fair value of financial asset at REZEEANEREZ 2R
fair value through profit or loss BEERANEED 509 2,657
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 R EAER RS (22,441) (21,613)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEE 741,125 701,622
Cash generated from operations BIEMEZHE 338,464 260,762
Income tax paid ERATSH (22,581) (24,930)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BEIDFAZRLPHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 315,883 235,832
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A ERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—ECF —ET—F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 BETT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment §& B %% - W& L& & (37) (29)
Interest received BHFE 722 624
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RRBFDMBZELPH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 685 595
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEFE
Repayment to a director BEY—RZEE - (28,940)
Advance from a related company Bk e —HEEA R 24,890 8,612
Interest paid BRHE - (63,660)
Payments on repurchase of shares avECIEI AN (17) -
New bank borrowing raised FEEZIRITER - 229,620
Repayment of bank borrowing BIRBITIER (393,170) (63,720)
Repayment of convertible bonds BRI ES (63,750) (32,614)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAaE (9,054) (10,604)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM Ri&EZEI(FiA) EBEzR&
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B (441,101) 38,694
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE INCASH HBR&RRSFE ML) 18
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS pi:d ] (124,533) 275,121
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT PHOBR—BZHRERBASEERY
1 APRIL 306,515 21,367
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates ~ YMEFE R & &) 2 g/ & (29,862) 10,027
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT W=R=1+—HZzH&R
31 MARCH BeEEY 24 152,120 306,515
s 4 2 A R0 ) 99
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DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information to the annual report.

The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital Investment
Limited (“Wincon Capital”), a private limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as the immediate and
ultimate holding company of the Company. Its ultimate controlling
party is Mr. Li Kwong Yuk who is the executive director of the
Company.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in loan financing, securities
trading and properties development.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollar (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated,
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), whose functional currency is Renminbi
(“RMB”), the functional currency of its subsidiaries is HKS.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Going concern assessment

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving the
consolidated financial statements, a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs are to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:

LA MM BmEME - AREAEDRF
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FEEEHBENHEEMFREE
A ERTE

RAFE  AEERRAHUBRERE S
RERUTEBSHMAG([EESFTAIA
g ) BEHh BB BERELESETA - B
RZEZ—FHA— Bk 2 BZRABRNFEEH
BEGIEVE

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions BRI RELEAFE 165 —T=—%5A
beyond 30 June 2021 (fB3TA) =t+B#&HN
Covid-1948F
HeER

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Phase 2

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Reference to the Conceptual Framework’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020'
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New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on

the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment property over the estimated useful live and after taking
into account of the estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. A leased property which is recognised as a right-of-
use asset is derecognised if the Group as intermediate lessor
classifies the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

SHE#Em)

B OB A AR AR BEG %M B A F R
IR FILG - WIRANERBEREZLHIE AR
ZHERAR - FHIE - RFEASKBELE
EHME R R R A R B AR BERGE
bz AREAKETBENZHNEARZ
HIEFIAS GHER -

BENBA RN R R RAEEN G K
F—H - UERCHNEL RN BREE
TR -

HASEKERRIZHARSEBNAEEE
NHMEERAE  #xm KA - XHkRE
MR HR B R 2 BN -

REME
REMETHEURBESOWE -

EHRANREMENSRAA(BETAEE
RS )RTE - RV HRE - REWER
AR E 1% 2EHTE R REHREE B
AR - TENRREDMENGBA I EAFHL
ZEEGFTFRIBEERUESEMBEERK A
HEITIER ©

REEMELESOKAFILERKBF IR
e EZMEFREERREHE R - KE
YMESHHUHMER o MAREESTRELHE
ABDELERBERE  AIBAREHAE
BEMHEEME SRR ILER - BUBER
ERTE S 2 et s B 1R (IR H B TSR
FEEZEEZRAECERAE)RYER
HUBRER MMt AR A

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
SERITHER

105




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ O S 5 4 3 it

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

106

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for own
use in the production or supply of services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:

W% - BE KRR

ME - BEAREBEERFIEEESEHRRS
FETTHRAGE BT - URARER RFHT
ERHERZFHRERE (A )R E G R H5ik
MR

WETRMEYE - BERREEB AR
EETAE R F RN EE - NEAVEMER -
BRI EAFH - RSREERFTEETIR
EHmEHR@E - A ESH 2 ERE
SRR HENER - Mt E A F TN
™

Buildings 20 years gF 20%F
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term or HEMERE HEFHHIF 2
3 years nEE
Furniture, fixtures and office  33'/,% B RERBAE 33'/,%
equipment B!
Motor vehicles 20% E 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties under development/completed
properties held for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development and completed properties held
for sale are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold
land element which is measured at cost model in accordance
with the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties
under development/completed properties held for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on a specific identification basis including allocation of the related
development expenditure incurred and where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated cost
to completion and costs necessary to make the sales. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Properties under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale upon completion.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise
cash at banks and in hand and cash at financial institutions. For
the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of cash, as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Financial instruments (Continued) eMT A&
A financial asset is held for trading if: —IEeRMEERHEEE W
. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in . WEZEERTEMNENEA TN
the near term; or (==
e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified o RIUEHERFENANEEEFERNT]
financial instruments that the Group manages together and PHREBMTEAEN—F 9  WHER
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or LIRFEEIEN T EITEE « ok
e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a o  WIAETREMEAE IR TAMNITE
hedging instrument. TIH-
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset BEoN - AREE A EE g E — BBk
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI SHRR A E AR & e IR IR A BRI /Y
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly TREEURBREEANERIEE « /7
reduces an accounting mismatch. IR BEIEE D ER SRR R D g R EEAC
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method MERBZHERAFTENCREEMS « 7
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. BUWAFRAERANEE®ER - piem T AGR
For financial instruments other than purchased or originated TH&ZE%EXEEETAT WENSREE)MNES -
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated E %U\ BEHEREENROAEREAE
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying BRARGE ERLBEERENSRE
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have ER - EELREERENSRIEEM
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets that T ABRABBHEMEER T —HEH
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is B SEPK AN FE R BRI R o WEERE
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised TRTANEERRERE F2REETH
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the LIREERE @ AR SWAEBH TEETH
credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves HIREERER  SRHESMEENZRSE
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest AARIART A AR TE AR (B JE FA B IR FI| R HERR -

income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “(loss)/gain arising from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” line item or “loss
on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including loan and
interest receivables, other receivables, deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group measures the loss allowance for financial assets
at amortised cost equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk for a particular debtor, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair
value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised
cost;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

Financial instruments (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor;
or

- information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counter party has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weight amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occuring as the weights. As for the exposure at default, for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

Financial instruments (Continued)

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and other
payables, amount due to a related company, liabilities component
of convertible bonds, other bond, promissory note and bank
borrowing are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that does
not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not
subsequently remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option
is exercised, in which case, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible
note, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Except for changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark reform in which
the Group applies the practical expedient, when the contractual
terms of a financial liability are modified, the Group assess whether
the revised terms result in a substantial modification from original
terms taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability. Accordingly,
such modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain
or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such difference
is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification
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Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
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Share-based payments DR EERZR

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss, with a corresponding increase in equity (i.e share
option reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.
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Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGU,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGU
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services to a customer. Specifically, the Group uses a
five-step approach to recognise revenue:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services
underlying the particular performance obligations is transferred to
customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or services (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods that are substantially the same.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties and sales related taxes.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration before
the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset
or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognised revenue from the following major source:

- Sales of properties

The Group’s property development activities are mainly carried out
in the PRC. Taking into account the contract terms, the Group’s
business practice and the legal and regulatory environment,
revenue from property sales contracts is recognised at a point
in time. Under the transfer-of-control approach in HKFRS 15,
revenue from property sales is generally recognised when the
property is accepted by the customer, or deemed as accepted
according to the contract, whichever is earlier, which is the point
in time when the customer has the ability to direct the use of the
property and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of
the property.

The Group receives the deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreement. Such deposits result
in contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period for the full amount of the contract price.
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Lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when the
Group reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases is recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Lease (Continued)

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

- any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

- an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.
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Lease (Continued)

The lease payments include: fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

- the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

- the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Lease (Continued)

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Employee benefits EREF

Group entities operate various pension schemes. The schemes SEEREELERKESETE - EFFTE—
are generally funded through payments to insurance companies WETERBENEBELHEBRRERARK
or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial ZHABEEESNAMESRITE - AEER
calculation. The Group has defined contribution plans. HERTFETE -

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme in
the PRC and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss)/profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption.

Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition exemption
are recognised on the date of remeasurement or modification.
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Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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Contingent assets/liabilities

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic
benefits to the Group and they are not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses continually
the development of contingent assets. If it has become virtually
certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the Group
recognises the asset and the related income in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the change
occurs.

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the
part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other parties
is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable.
If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic
benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the change
in probability occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances
where no reliable estimate can be made.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group estimates and recognises liabilities based on the
submitted tax returns and expected the final tax assessment to be
received will have no additional tax become due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, deferred tax assets of approximately
HK$54,791,000 (2021: approximately HK$39,573,000) in relation
to allowance for loan and interest receivable are set out in Note
32. The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the actual future
taxable profits generated are less or more than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result in revision of
future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal
or further recognition takes place.

The PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible allowance and expenditures including sales charges,
borrowing costs and all properties development expenditures.

The Group is subject to the PRC land appreciation tax in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations. In recognising
the PRC land appreciation tax, the management estimated the
tax rates enacted to the Group with reference to the latest tax
jurisdictions of the cities of the PRC in which the properties of the
Group situated in. However, the PRC land appreciation tax rates
might vary upon the finalisation of payment.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Management performs a review at each reporting period on
the carrying amounts of completed properties held for sale
and properties under development. Based on management’s
review, write-down of completed properties held for sale and
properties under development will be made when the estimated
net realisable value has declined below the carrying amount. In
determining the net realisable value of completed properties held
for sale and properties under development, management based
on recent global and local economic developments, recent sales
transactions of the Group and other similar properties in the
surrounding areas, marketability of the Group’s existing properties,
market survey reports available from independent property
valuers, internally available information and management’s
expectation on future sales.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amounts of the completed
properties held for sales and properties under development
were approximately HK$108,828,000 (2021: approximately
HK$106,232,000) and HK$2,145,681,000 (2021: approximately
HK$1,001,215,000) respectively. No write down of completed
properties held for sales and properties under development was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: nil).

(A FARERZEERIE (#)
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

ECL on loan and interest receivables are assessed individually.
Allowance for impairment of loan and interest receivables are
based on assumptions about ECL. The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, bases on the number of days that an
individual loan and interest receivable is outstanding as well
as the Group’s forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it may
be necessary to make additional allowance for impairment to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of loan and
interest receivables was approximately HK$1,817,875,000
(2021: approximately HK$2,195,162,000), net of allowance
of approximately HK$219,165,000 (2021: approximately
HK$158,742,000). The information about the ECL and the
Group’s loan and interest receivables are disclosed in Note 23.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

WAKERRE  BFEEMIERBEL
) 2 45 e R YUK R (N B FE USR58 = 5 WY
FIBKSHERBENIR) - AKEWAZ I

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable arising
from loan financing, securities trading and properties development,
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties and sales

related taxes. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: ™
2022 2021
= —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRTT BT T
Revenue from contracts with customer  FHi#EM ¥R ERE 1558
within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEAHERSHBRA
Sales of properties — at point of time SHE VI — AR 6,512 55,017
6,512 55,017
Revenue from other sources e YL ON
Interest income from provision of loan REEFRERG 2F B
financing services WA 148,432 171,044
Dividend income SR ON 40 8
148,472 171,052
154,984 226,069
Transaction price allocated to the remaining SEERTEBHBBZXSER

performance obligations

The amount of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
regarding contracts for sale of properties as at 31 March 2022
was approximately HK$954,988,000 (2021: approximately
HK$709,828,000) and is expected to be recognised as revenue
within one year.

The ultimate consideration for those contracts will depend on the
occurrence or non-occurrence of future customer’s fulfilment
of contracts. Accordingly, the above may not reflect the actual
performance of the Group in the future. The analysis is solely for
compliance with the HKFRS 15 disclosure requirement in respect
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations.

R-E-_—FZA=+—8  2H=EHH
EMESHZBTRHOERL(KBITHID
REBIT) 2 RSB BH A 1954,988,0007T
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TR —FRERBUA o
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

Information reported to the board of directors, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods delivered or service rendered.

The Group has three reportable and operating segments (i)
securities trading business; (i) loan financing business; and (iii)
properties development business. Segment revenue is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of

MEEE(XTREERRE[TRZLERRK
EERZEMTIRERDELFENEER
BmEL - AERARNEDRATRERS
28R

AEBE=ZER2HREENE : )EFE
BER  (\EXBEXRY  Ri)WERBRE
1% o DR A MR R BER P B IDER

= °

profit or loss.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment:

Year ended 31 March 2022

CECL PR

AEBRAT2RNEEDES
KEAWWT

173 2 AR

BE_E_"_§-H=+—HIFE

Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development
business business business Total
ESRERE HRREEE DEREEE o]
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
EETT EETT BT EETT
Revenue A
External revenue SANERURA 40 148,432 6,512 154,984
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERNBRREANERE
at FVTPL JEREEER (60) = = (60)
Loss arising from financial assets at FVTPL  MEZBRZAREREZ £/
BEEEZER (670) = = (670)
Provision of allowance for imparment of ~ FHEEWERRFIS ZRE
loan and interest receivables B = (60,423) = (60,423)
Segment (loss)/profit SE(FE), /2 (690) 87,919 (14,686) 72,543
Bank interest income RITH BUA 722
Finance costs BERA (121,327)
Unallocated corporate income RATATHA 218
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBRRFAL (33,884)
Loss before tax BRI A1 (81,728)
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Segment revenue and results (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2021

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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R = A= —HIFE

FRBARRIR®)
BE_Z_—F=A=t+—HILFE

Securities Loan Properties
trading financing development
business business business Total
BHREEER EBRRBER  MNERLES Fok ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Revenue A
External revenue LI ON 8 171,044 55,017 226,069
Loss on disposal of financial assets HERBRRREANEREL
at FVTPL CREE/EE (993) - - (993)
Gain arising from financial assets at FVIPL BRI ANEREL
TREEESE WS 32,688 - - 32,688
Reversal of allowance for impairment of loan &K E % FI 8.2 i E R
and interest receivables - 19,696 - 19,696
Segment profit SEERT 31,703 190,740 11,201 233,644
Bank interest income TR BMA 624
Finance costs AR A (156,475)
Gain on modification of convertible bonds &3] AR B3 2 Uizs 69,321
Unallocated corporate income FDEARRA 1,882
Unallocated corporate expenses L WNGILE (33,720)
Profit before tax BREATE A 115,276

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 4. Segment
profit/loss represents the profit earned by/(loss) from each
segment without allocation of certain other income, finance costs,
gain on modification of convertible bonds and certain central
administration expenses. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and performance

assessment.

RENB R HRR BN T4 2 N E
ZEFREER - BB, BEESSHA
BRIz BN ELz(BR)  MLESRE
THMKA - BERA - EFTAIRRESRZ
Wt METHRRITEER - RERDEME
REME  KWOIRATREERREEZRL
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SHRRERAR
FERBAT2RRELD BRI ZEER

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segment:

BEDTMT :

2022 2021
—E-— —E - —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT
Segment assets REEE
Securities trading business BEHEBEEEE 33,043 34,222
Loan financing business B RVE X 1,817,875 2,195,162
Properties development business ESLEEE Y 2,329,284 1,340,269
Total segment assets DB ELT 4,180,202 3,569,653
Unallocated corporate assets AOBRARIEE 235,980 386,449
Total consolidated assets SHtEERE 4,416,182 3,956,102
Segment liabilities SHEaRE
Securities trading business BHFEEEY = -
Loan financing business BB R = -
Properties development business S ESEE e 1,528,653 1,128,836
Total segment liabilities DIREEER 1,528,653 1,128,836
Unallocated corporate liabilities vl /NCIN=N 1,412,934 1,353,397
Total consolidated liabilities SHaE®RE 2,941,587 2,482,233

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSERREASERSIEERMS -

allocating resources between segments:

MEEERNREERENE(ETY
% BENEE REWE BETER
REE - BLMBAEE FTERE 1
A M E YR FA SR & KR
FEWMRIN) © R

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than .
certain property, plant and equipment, investment property,
certain right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets, certain
deposits, prepayments and other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents; and

MBERBEEDEELZDHE(ETHEM
FEATBRAR - AR  IRERIBALE
e —HRBERRFA » AALRE - 7]
BES - AtbESLEERERS)

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than .
certain other payables, tax payables, deferred tax liabilities,
amount due to a related company, promissory note,
convertible bonds, other bond and lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

Other segment information Htht R EEHE
For the year ended 31 March 2022 8FEF_E-_"_F=-A=1+—HILEE
Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development
business business business  Unallocated Total
EHRERYE HRMERE DRERRS ROE #E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTR BRTR BRTT BRTR BRTr

Amounts included in the measure of ~ REFENBEFIEB
segment profit or loss or segment NEEERTTAZEE

assets:
Additions to non-current assets FERBEERE(TRESH

(other than financial instruments and TR RERFHEEE)

deferred tax assets) - - 37 - 37
Depreciation of property, plantand )% - R RRETE

equipment - - 1,741 1,576 3,317
Depreciation of investment property ~ REMENE - - 892 - 892
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {EREAETE = = = 9,186 9,186
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z -—F - —F=H=+—HIIFZ

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021

7. DEER@®
HttpEEE(w)
HE-_ZE--F=A=t+—HIFE

Securities Loan Properties
trading financing  development
business business business Unallocated Total
BHEELE BUREEE NERZES KA e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT
Amounts included in the measure of ~ REFENBEFIEB
segment profit or loss or segment PEEERHAZEE
assets:
Additions to non-current assets FRBEEFE(TOESR
(other than financial instruments and TR RELFIBEE)
deferred tax assets) - - 29 4,169 4,198
Depreciation of property, plantand % - R RRETE
equipment - - 1,714 1,565 3,269
Depreciation of investment property ~ REMENE - - 843 - 843
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ EFREEETE - - - 9,800 9,800
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Geographical information

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2022

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country of
domicile) and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location of the operations. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets (other than prepayment
and deposits and deferred tax assets) is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

ESRHE

D S 5 3 B

HE T - —F=HA=+—HIFE

AEBz EEUNEEFERER ME) R

i -

BRASERAIEES ZBAZERHZE
BREHET - BREAKEZIERBDEE(E
MR KRR S MREHRIREERIN) 2 BRHR

BEMEMBLE

25 -

Revenue from external customers

REMBERZKA
2022 2021
- <Jonint “E--F
Revenue from Revenue from
contract with From other contract with From other
customers sources Total customers sources Total
EFSNEA  RERREE #n  EPafRA  REEMKR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTT ERTT BRTT BB BETT BB
The PRC i 6,512 148,167 154,679 55,017 169,016 204,033
Hong Kong B - 305 305 - 2,036 2,036
6,512 148,472 154,984 55,017 171,052 226,069
Non-current assets
ERBDEE

As at 31 March

®=BA=+—H
2022 2021
—=E-— —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETFT
The PRC H 29,273 32,435
Hong Kong BB 4,095 8,166
33,368 40,601

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

AREBRRE - E-——FRK-_E-——&F=1
=+ — BRI EAHE SRS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER@)
Information about major customers BEREEERMEH
The Group has a large number of customers, none of whom REEREBERERF SIBEAAEPERE
contributed 10% or more of the Group’s revenue. EEWARIT0%IA E ©
8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hihlss
2022 2021
= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT
Bank interest income IRITH B 722 624
Government grants (Note) BB (P3E) - 702
Rental income e A 216 238
Exchange gain e 2 552
Others Efth 546 390
1,486 2,506
Note: The amount represents salaries and wage subsidies granted under M S EAREFITRERNENEESE T
Anti-Epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong Kong Special FEHNFeRITEMAM  ARINEZEZZT
Administrative Region for the use of paying wages of employees for the ——F=ZA=+—HIEFENEETLE -

year ended 31 March 2021.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z=F = —4F =H=+—HIFEZ

2022 2021

—EBCF T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT

Interest on bank borrowing RITERZFE - 13,326

Less: amount capitalised in properties under 8 : RERAYEERN 2 &5

development - (13,326)
Effective interest expenses on convertible AR ES 2 BRI S (F3E30)

bonds (Note 30) 104,530 155,577

Interest on promissory note EHBERZFE 250 250

Interest on other bond HAbES 2 FE 16,295 -

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHNE 252 648

121,327 156,475

During the year ended 31 March 2021, interest on bank
borrowing had been fully capitalised to expenditure on qualifying
assets under properties under development as the borrowing is

specifically arranged for property development.

MERZHE o

HE_Z-_—F=RA=+—HIFE ' R17
ERZMEEEMENMEERRTYETH
BEREBEMX - AHEBERDHESER
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

(Loss)/profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

RELAT(E51R),  BFIE MR T & A -

2022 2021
—E-—F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments  ZERFZ/THRABBE 5,422 5,843
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ and BEMEIA(IEREESR
chief executive’s emoluments) FETBAEMSE) 13,820 8,396
Retirement benefit schemes contribution RNEREEER(TREE
(excluding directors’ and chief executive’s EFEREFETHRAEME)
emoluments) 315 299
Total staff costs BT A4 19,557 14,538
Amount of inventories recognised as an EHRRRAX 2FESRE
expense 1,866 17,681
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE 2
— Audit services — Bz 1,280 1,250
— Non-audit services —FEZRY 300 459
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% ~ E N &2 TE 3,317 3,269
Depreciation of investment property "EMERE 892 843
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 9,186 9,800
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(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

emoluments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A D B4 %5 Hie 3% Bt sk

HE T - —F=HA=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 March 2022

(a)

Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

chief executive for the year are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BES__F-A=t+-HLEE

EFEREFRTHRARZEHSE

EXNHENAFEEERTETHA

BEBZMEWT

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees other benefits  contribution Total
Hek Hodo et
ik Htias AR #a
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ERTT ERTT EETT EETT
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Li Kwong Yuk THE - 4,046 59 4,105
Su Xiaonong Hizg - 650 58 708
Wang Xiaohua T - 180 9 189
Independent Non-Executive BikpTES:
Directors:
Cao Kuangyu BRT 120 - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki FER 150 - - 150
Ip Chi Wai EF G 150 - - 150
420 4,876 126 5,422
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

1. EFRTZTHAE 25

//ﬁ‘w
(5 )/

(a) EERFETHRARZM®#®)

For the year ended 31 March 2021
HE-_Z-—F-fA=t+-HIFE

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees  other benefits contribution Total
ek SRR
e Hft ) AT ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT

152

Executive Directors: YITES:
Li Kwong Yuk S - 3,900 35 3,935
Su Xiaonong HEE - 606 31 637
Li Zhongxia ZHER-Z_TF

(resigned on 8 October 2020) +AN\BEHT) - 749 11 760
Wang Xiaohua TRE(N-Z-TF

(appointed on 8 October 2020) +ANBEZT) - 87 4 91
Independent Non-Executive BIAFRITES :

Directors:
Cao Kuangyu R T 120 - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki 528 150 - - 150
Ip Chi Wai ] 150 - - 150

420 5,342 81 5,843
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Su Xiaonong is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
the directors and chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office during the two years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included two directors
(2021: three directors) of the Company, details of
whose emoluments are set out in Note 11(a) above. The
emoluments paid to the remaining three (2021: two) highest
paid individuals are as follows:

(a)

(b)

D S 5 3 B

R = A= —HIFE

EERFIETHRARZH®@®)

FHEORELETAARRBZEBITRAR
MEEEXARBECMEREES AT
RITHABRH 2 IR #1522 B

)

RBEZE-_—_FR=-FT=-—F=H
=T —HIEMBAFE - AEBEBERAK
NAEERFEBITHA B BB
& BRI INAZRIIAA K E A
e LBEREIE -

ERHBTEEME DRESREELR
AIRANEEEHREZIRGERE - £
WBLERITEEME DIRFRERR
AIEEMREZ RIS -

LIEEEHAL
TEBRRHFATBERARAIMNEES
(ZZ=—F : =ZZE=F)  KEMez
HBEEIR EXH 1) - Tk
T=B(ZE=—F : MB)E=aHALT
ZBemT

2022 2021

= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BRETT BT T

Salaries and other benefits e LEMBER 6,504 2,005
Retirement benefits scheme contribution RURIETIET SR 48 21
6,552 2,026
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. EFREBITBRAB ZEH M)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) ABEEFAL®E)
The emoluments were within the following bands: HE D AT E -
2022 2021
—ECF —ET—4F
No. of No. of
employees employees
ERAS BB A%
Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 L= %1,000,0007T = 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 7 #4,000,001 7L E
7B %1,500,0007T 2 1
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 73,500,001 70 E
75 #54,000,0007T 1 -
No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the REE-Z—_— B —F=ZA=+—
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon AIERESEAM - AEERED S ER
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office SEmHALTME - fEARSI AR IMAT
during the two years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. SEFH R - SERBERAEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022

D S 5 3 B

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT

Current income tax & ERFTIS A
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT”) PRI EMESHR(TEEMERH]) 35,339 40,922
LAT I (ER 194 29,991
Over provision in prior years FFiBmERE (911) -
Deferred tax PRIEFIA (15,024) 1,428
Income tax expense FiisHi & A 19,598 72,341

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
profits tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%.

Since group entities are not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, Hong Kong Profits tax was
calculated at a flat rate of 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profits (2021: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong tax has
been made during the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021 as the assessable profits is wholly absorbed by tax
losses brought forwards for both years.

BRBEBEBFEROFEHERRS - &
BREBBREBE 008 LA ZH
K 58.25% + BB 2008 LA F
2L AE16.5% °

BEREEERB IS NETHEMRSE
1% BENESHR A ERRBRIIE
16.5% M8 —HEHE(ZT - —F:
165%) - AEE-_TE-_—_FRK_-F
T FZA=Zt+—HILFENERRA
B HRBIIRIBEIE 2SR - B E
MZMER BB R -

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

(i)

(i)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), Singapore and Bermuda, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the BVI, Singapore and
Bermuda for both years.

LAT in the PRC is levied on properties developed by the
Group for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% (2021: ranging from 30% to 60%) on the appreciation
of land value, which under the applicable regulations, is
calculated based on the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights
and all properties development expenditures.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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S N R B RE AN o

B LR ER A REEREHEE
ZWE - ARERERI0%EE0%(=F
T : 30%E60%) ¥ LI IREEREL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R A R Y

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the REEMEHEBRES HERRKRIT 2RI
(loss)/profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or AT (E518) /BFIEERIT ¢

loss as follows:

2022 2021

—ECHF T

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BETT BT T

(Loss)/profit before tax BRAAT(EE), BT (81,728) 115,276
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% ?Tzzliﬂtﬁfr/a TR 25%

(2021: 25%) TR F  25%)FTE A (20,432) 28,819
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AT R 2 BT E 42,692 51,821
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBI G 2 TG 2 (581) (16,980)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZRIBRE 2 T2 7,028 2,866
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AT RER 2 HIBEE

recognised - (544)
Effect of tax exemption granted (Note (ii)) BT HIBER B 522 (B FE(Gi) = (10)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMANEERLEENBARZ

operating in other jurisdictions TRBERTE (8,198) 6,369
Over provision in prior years BAEFEBERE (911) -
Income tax expense Frigti& M 19,598 72,341
Notes: BEE -

@i The domestic tax rate in the PRC is used as it is where the operation of U Hﬂﬁé$§j§%@¥%ﬁ%qﬂ B E - WA
the Group is substantially based. PR R AR o

(ii) Tax exemptions represented reduction of Hong Kong Profits Tax for the (i) REREN=F=— ?/: T= : FR : T
year of assessment of 2021/2022 and 2020/2021 by 100%, subject to —FE/ SR ERRTREERERN
a celling of HK$10,000 (2021: HK$10,000) per company. 100% - BERFERIMAS B RBE

10,0007C(=ZZF=—4 : % #10,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2022, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the reporting period (2021: nil).

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

REBE-_T-__F=A=t+—HIFEAR
BRSO EAALE - TNE B RS BRI
FEBEMRE(ZT_—F &) -

ARBHER ARIEERERLEE(BIE),/
BN TSRIRA T BURET & ¢

2022 2021
= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
(Loss)/profit (B548), &7 B¥TT BT T
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to the RATHEB NEEFE
owners of the Company (E8),/&F (101,326) 42,935
’000 000
Number of shares 2V ] = | TB% T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares T E &R EAR L #SEIE 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per & 3@ I F 1988
share 7,356,861 7,357,008

The basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2022 are the same since the computation of diluted loss per share
does not assume the conversion or exercise of the Company’s
outstanding convertible bonds and share options since they
would result in decrease in loss per share for 2022.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s share options and the conversion
of the Company’s convertible bonds because both of the exercise
price of the share options and the conversion price of those
convertible bonds were higher than the average market price for
shares for 2021.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

R A R Y

Completed
investment
property
BB TIREYHE
HK$
ok
COoSsT 5% 3
At 1 April 2020 N_ZE_FFMHHA—H 17,867
Exchange difference fEH =% 1,439
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZZEZ—F=A=1+—HK
—E-—FPWA—A 19,306
Exchange difference EH =R 816
At 31 March 2022 RZZEZZF=A=+—H 20,122
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION REHRE
At 1 April 2020 NZE_FFPMA—H 2,475
Charge for the year FEME 843
Exchange difference PEH =58 225
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 EA:E@——¢ZHZ+—H&
—E-—FWMA—H 3,543
Charge for the year FEMX 892
Exchange difference fEH =% 164
At 31 March 2022 RZEBEZ—F=A=+—H 4,599
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 March 2022 RZZEZ=—F=A=+—H 15,523
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=H=+—H 15,763

The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 March
2022 was approximately HK$19,800,000 (2021: approximately
HK$23,421,000). As at 31 March 2022, the fair value has been
arrived at based on a valuation carried out by an independent

valuer, not connected with the Group, International Valuation

Limited (2021: International Valuation Limited).

The Group lease out the kindergarten under operating lease with
rental payable quarterly and the Group is not exposed to foreign
currency risk as a result of the lease arrangements, as the lease
is denominated in the respective functional currency of group

entities.

RZZE-—_F=A=+—H XEBZERE
YN EL AE119,800,0000( — T = —
& )78 #238,421,00070) e RZZE - —F =
A=+—8  AnEHEREAREEI £
E B AERBRTEARAR(ZE—
F: EERFEERARETHEEES
t|jo

AEBRELLHEELHEHREE  8FEX
NS MAREENEEEESENIE
B¥HE Ak ASETSREEREME
ER SN R ©

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
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159




160

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

The fair value was determined based on the comparison approach
with reference to the realised price or current asking prices for
the comparable properties and adjusted to take into account
the market expectation from property investors to reflect factors
specific to the Group’s investment property. There has been no
change from the valuation techniques used in the prior year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best

use of the property is their current use.

Details of the Group’s investment property and information about

RAETIRBHLBESZENELBNEZE
REMLBAABEETE  ARVERREEZ
MISTEMEL BB URRAEFBREYES
BzRAE - RLEEFE  FAMGBERMILE

44
=8 e

REHEZSEMEN R ER

HEME 2R

B REEREARERAMME

AEBERHEMRORENEFBERBER

the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as AEERHERDNT
followings:
Fair value
at level 3
Carrying as at
Amount 31 March 2022
REB3RZ
KRE
R-ZT—-—
IREE =A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRTT BRTT
Kindergarten located in the PRC IR B ) R E 15,523 19,800
Fair value
at level 3
Carrying as at
Amount 31 March 2021
B2
AVEE]
R-T_—%
BfEE =—A=+—~
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETT BETT
Kindergarten located in the PRC MRFE ) RE 15,763 23,421
The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-line PR B Y E AR R ER20F I BT RT
basis over the term of lease of 20 years. Eo

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022

D S 5 3 B

Furniture,
fixtures, and

Leasehold office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
& KER
BT HENRRE - WOERH RE |
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BT BT
COST BE
At 1 April 2020 RZZZTFMA—H 17,766 7,408 9,684 15,487 50,340
Additions NE - - 29 - 29
Exchange difference BHERE 1,431 251 611 323 2,616
At31 March 2021 and 1 Aprii2021  RZZ-—#=ZA=+—-HB}
—F-FMmA-AH 19,197 7,654 10,324 15,810 52,985
Additions NE - - 37 - 37
Written-off ik - - (162) - (162)
Exchange difference EHESR 811 - 408 183 1,402
At 31 March 2022 W-E-—F=ZA=1—H 20,008 7,654 10,607 15,993 54,262
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  BAHirE
At 1 April 2020 NZZE-TENA—A 5,867 7,317 9,532 11,154 33,870
Charge for the year FERY 1,499 - 51 1,719 3,269
Exchange difference BRERE 518 251 680 102 1,551
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 WZZE-_—F=ZA=+-HR
“E--FMmA-AH 7,884 7,568 10,263 12,975 38,690
Charge for the year FERY 1,687 - 54 1,576 3317
Written-off | - - (162) - (162)
Exchange difference BEHER 362 - 402 168 932
At 31 March 2022 WZE-Z-$=A=1-H 9,933 7,568 10,557 14,719 42,777
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2022 WZE-=F=A=1—H 10,075 86 50 1,274 11,485
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=A=1+—H 11,313 86 61 2,835 14,295

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment and the right-of-use assets based on higher

of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The carrying

amount of the relevant assets does not exceed the recoverable

amount based on value in use and no impairment has been

recognised.

AERERIBE A SOER G ERA AR EREE
ZEEEMBDE - BELREBARERE
BEZAIKOEEHE - HEEE 2 REELH
HBAEENMEREEE ZATRE SR - 8
EMERRIE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o PF B4 5 K B Rk
For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. EHEEENMEERE
LIABILITIES
(i) Right-of-use assets (i) EHEFEE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HELH HERT #axt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
As at 1 April 2020 RZE-EFNA—H 2,411 13,630 16,041
Addition RNE - 4,169 4,169
Depreciation during the year FRIFTE (69) (9,731) (9,800)
Exchange difference b Z 192 59 133
As at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 H-ZE-——®F=A=+—H
kZFE-—5MA—H 2,534 8,009 10,543
Addition NE - 4,842 4,842
Depreciation during the year FAHME (73) (9,113) (9,186)
Exchange difference b ZE 106 55 161
As at 31 March 2022 WZE-_—F=H=+—H 2,567 3,793 6,360

Leasehold land represent land use rights located in the PRC
and under medium-term lease. The lease terms of leased
properties range from 2 to 3 years (2021: 2 to 3 years).

FAE T I AR B 2 T FE R - I
LHHAHEERE - HEWENHEESRR
NF2E3F(ZE=—F  283F) °

(i) Lease liabilities (i) EERKE
2022 2021
= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Current portion ENER S 2,418 7,735
Non-current portion IERBNE S 1,357 -
3,775 7,735

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 DF W B R B T
For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E
17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 17. EREEENHEERE®)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(i) Lease liabilities (Continued) (i) HAEARRm®)
2022 2021
= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥ETT BT
Amounts payable under lease liabilities: HE&EBETFEFMRIE :
Within one year —FR 2,418 7,735
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 1,357 -
3,775 7,735
Less: Amount due for settlement within B 2B ARNE B E 2 £ 58
12 months (shown under current (RrBBEERETIIR)
liabilities) (2,418) (7,735)
1,357 -
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied HRRES & TSRS ESF
to lease liabilities range from 2.96% to 3.99% (2021: from KA 096%E3.99%( —FE— —4F :
3.51% to 3.99%). H13.51%%3.99%) °
(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (iii) RIRBWEIBZLE
2022 2021
—E"HF —E-—%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
B¥ETT BT

Depreciation expenses on right-of-use assets ¥ R EE 2 HFrEFX

— Leased properties —HEEF 9,113 9,731
— Leased land —MHE i 73 69
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBGBEZHMERX 252 648

smmmaamas 163
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

(iv) Others

During the year ended 31 March 2022, total cash outflow
for leases amount to approximately HK$9,054,000 (2021:
approximately HK$10,604,000).

(iv) HEfth
REBEE-_ZT-_—_F=A=+—H1:
FE O HEZESREBRAENS
#9,054,0007L( — T - —F : 488
10,604,0007T) °

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BT

At the beginning of the financial year R BFEA] 1,001,215 518,657
Additions NE 1,102,149 427,875
Exchange difference [E N =R 42,317 54,783
At the end of the financial year REBFEE R 2,145,681 1,001,215

Properties under development are classified as current assets as
the construction period of the relevant properties development
project is expected to be completed in the normal operating
cycle.

The Group has pledged certain properties under development of
HK$NIl to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(2021: HK$980,382,000).

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are situated on a
leasehold land in the PRC. All the completed properties held for
sale are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

164  DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z=F = —4F =H=+—HIFEZ

D S 5 3 B

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

Financial assets mandatorily measured @ ZERRIERFERAOAE s —E-—F
at FVTPL BRENEZEMEE =B=+—H —A=+—H
HK$°000 HK$’000

BETT BT

Listed equity securities held for trading BEEE LMRAES 33,043 34,222

The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange,
the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the London Stock Exchange.

B EMBRAREZZ A ETIREREEAFT -
EBBHRIARMAESRZ SR B
WG HEMEE -

Included in the Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are the following TR EERIEEE U B
amounts denominated in currency other than the functional BENSETAREENRBERIZANER
currency of the relevant group entity: BremEE -

31 March 31 March

2022 2021

== —E-—F

ZA=+-8 =A=t+-H

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Pound Sterling (“GBP”) ES7I(ES 7)) 30,676 29,709

RVB AR 344 414
SRR E A A

RIS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 OF B 15 i 6 B 5E
For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z=F = —F=H=+—HILFEZ
21. INVENTORIES 21. &
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BT T
Wine JBfE 7,250 7,250

22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

20, BRI « EAHERES

DEPOSITS

2022 2021
ol St - —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BRTIT BT
Prepayments TEfSRIR 58,985 218,722
Deposits paid BEfiEE 2,510 6,454
Other receivables Ho e YR 5k 1,731 156
63,226 225,332

Analysed for reporting purposes: ESRERBRZ DT
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,231 2,881
Current assets MENEE 61,995 222,451
63,226 225,332

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
Loan receivables JEWE TR 1,910,003 2,203,570
Interest receivables YR & 127,037 150,334
2,037,040 2,353,904

Less: Allowance for impairment of loan and & : FEWE F & F SR E B
interest receivables (219,165) (158,742)
1,817,875 2,195,162

The loans and interest receivables are due from independent
third parties, which are unsecured and their relevant due dates
started from April 2022 to March 2023 (2021: started from May
2021 to March 2022). The interest rates on the loan and interest
receivables are fixed ranging from 8% to 15% per annum (2021:
8% to 24% per annum).

The balance of loan and interest receivables of HK$1,962,000,000
was settled up to the date of approval of this financial statements.

ERER A ST EUIEN E =5 2308
AEEEREABEERRAE S =
WAZE=ZE-=F=-AIH(ZFE=—F : 5=
T HRAFES =) - ERE
FRMEZFNEERNFEF8NE15%(=
E—F : BF8%E24%) °

HEHERGERERBE - BRERLRAE
LEERTEIE1 962,000,000 BT ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest receivables,
net of allowance for impairment of loan and interest receivables
recognised presented based on the loan drawn down date and
interests accrued at the end of the reporting period:

REE IR - USRS B (F0RR B FERR E
WE R H B Z BB ) R E SRR E A 8 &
FERTH S 2| BRI OMTANT ¢

2022 2021

—E_— —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BT

Within 90 days 90HMA 66,910 114,169
91 days to 180 days 91&E180H = -
181 days to 365 days 181%365H 1,750,965 2,076,718
Over 365 days 365H A - 4,275
1,817,875 2,195,162

The Group’s loan financing customers included in the loan and
interest receivables are due for settlement at the date specified
in the respective loan agreements. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The credit risk of loan and interest receivables is considered as
low since initial recognition as loan and interest receivables at
the end of both reporting periods are not past due. There was
no recent history of default of the debtors. To measure the ECL
of loan and interest receivables, loan and interest receivables are
assessed individually by the management of the Group, based
on the credit loss experience, the customers’ repayment history,
financial background and financial condition of each borrower and
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic data that is available without undue cost or effort.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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The movement in the allowance for impairment of loan and

interest receivables is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A D B4 %5 Hie 3% Bt sk

For the year ended 31 March 2022

FEME TR S A SR ER B2 BT

A2 —F - —F=A=F—HIFE

Total
#5t
HK$'000
BT IT
Balance as at 1 April 2020 ZE-FFMA-B 2B 178,438
Reversal of allowance for impairment on loan and interest ﬁé‘@ﬂgﬂﬂl% R B
receivables (19,696)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 RZTZ—F=A=+—HkK
—E_-FNA-BZHE 158,742
Provision of allowance for impairment on loan and interest 5142 & U & 7k K K| B, 8 351 (8 5 5
receivables 60,423
Balance as at 31 March 2022 RZZBZZF=A=+—BHZ#&# 219,165
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or {HEH RS P EE B E A B R L &) o

significant assumptions made.

The Group has conducted an assessment of ECL according to
forward-looking information and used appropriate model and
assumption in its measurement of expected credit losses. The
assumptions included the future macroeconomic conditions and

BrREEEA RRRETRMEEERT

AREEE R R AR REE R ABREER) -

borrower’s creditworthiness. (e.g. the probability of default and

the corresponding losses).

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
RIS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand
and cash at financial institutions with an original maturity of three
months or less:

RekReFBYEBRTHES  FHEAS
KIRBIBHR R =1E A AR Z F R & B
BzHE2WT

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BETT FEHET T

Cash at bank and in hand RITHE e MNFERS 152,120 306,515

Cash at bank and financial institutions carried interest at market
rates which range from 0.001% to 0.3% (2021: 0.01% to 0.25%)
per annum.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB
which are placed with banks in the PRC are subject to the Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations imposed by the PRC government.

As at 31 March 2022, deposits of approximately HK$Nil (2021:
HK$288,536,000) were held at banks as restricted cash for pre
sales of properties under development in PRC.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

RITREENEREBEZREENTEF
0.001% E03% (ZF = — 4% : 0.01% &
0.25%) 2 TIGF|EET B -

AEBEZRE PR EEMAAREHE
YWEERTEZRT  ARERTERTE
T2 SMNEE HER B -

RIZE--F=ZA=+—H GBRHBEBEZ
TT(ZZT = —4F : #%288,536,0007T ) 1F I
RIRTT - AP RBEPYEEENZRFIR
éE‘ o

AEBERE LRSFEMATIERE

2022 2021
—EZC —E - —F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

HKD e 511 987
Australian dollar (“AUD”) SEyT([8T]) 36 37
RMB AR 151,523 305,328
UsD =TT 5 116
Others Hip 45 47
152,120 306,515
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

The amounts are non-interest bearing, unsecured and are
repayable on demand.

R A R Y

ZAARRE B NN BRI E]

I]]]u}
e

2022 2021

= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BRTIT BETIT

Trade payables VAN N 5,854 3,526
Accruals fEETE A 27,587 33,749
Other payables AN 3,223 9,758
36,664 47,033

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

RBERR - EZRMNEFREREH2R
ZIREE DT

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT BT T

Within 30 days 30HA 3,543 -
31 to 60 days 31E60H = -
61 to 90 days 61ZF90H - -
91 to 180 days 91%£180H - 1,875
Over 181 days 181HM E 2,311 1,651
5,854 3,526

The average credit term on purchase of goods is 60-180 days
(2021: 60-180 days). The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the
credit timeframe.

The Group receives the deposits from customers when they
sign the sale and purchase agreement. Such deposits result
in contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed property for sales.

Revenue of approximately HK$6,582,000 and HK$55,017,000
were recognised relates to arrived-forward contract liabilities upon
the respective performance obligations were satisfied during the
year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

REERZFEHEEBRAGOE180H (=
——% : 60£180H) ° ZK%@E%\J:EW%H
REIRHER - HIRFTE BN RENMEEHR
W/EJ'(E °

AEEREFEIEEHRFRNEFZ
T - AERSEHANBBENBEANEREE
HRAANER BEEFPISERIFEYE
AR o

Jtir; %Ei%%’ﬁ&ﬂ%fﬂéaﬁﬁém\
FEE N BERBE WA BLEE,582,000
JC M B #55,017,0007T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

2022 2021

—EBCF T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT

Bank borrowing — secured HRITER—BEMA - 383,884
Carrying amount repayable*: FESBRTE"

2022 2021

= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT

Within one year R—FR = -

In the second year BF - 383,884

= 383,884

The amounts due are based on the specific repayment terms set out
in the facilities letters with no demand clause included, which allow the
bank borrowing to be repaid according to the Group’s future properties
sales plan. According to the future properties sales plan, the bank
borrowing will be fully repaid on or before the year 2023.

The bank borrowing was denominated in RMB as at 31 March
2021.

The bank borrowing carried floating rate at Loan Prime Rate plus
0.45% per annum as at 31 March 2021. The finance cost have
been capitalised in properties under development during the year
ended 31 March 2021. Details are set out in Note 9.

As at 31 March 2021, banking facilities were secured by assets
pledged as set out in Note 38.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

D S 5 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z=F = —4F =H=+—HIFEZ

The amounts of banking facilities and the utilisation at the end of
the reporting period are set out as follows:

R EHIRMIRTTRE TR R B ARSI T

2022 2021

ol Sl —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

B¥ETT BT

Facility amount BbEFRIE - 436,278
Utilisation: A

— Secured bank borrowing —BIERIRITER - 383,884

2022 2021

—E-- —E-—F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT BT

Promissory note EH R 5,639 5,389

On 11 September 2019, the Group issued an unsecured
promissory note with principal amount of HK$5,000,000 to an
independent third party. The promissory note bears interest at
a rate of 5% per annum and has a term of one calendar year.
During the year ended 31 March 2021, supplementary agreement
was signed on 10 September 2020 for further extension to 10
September 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, supplementary agreement
was signed on 10 September 2021 for further extension to 10
September 2022.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2022, supplementary
agreement was signed on 13 June 2022 for further extension to
10 September 2023. The promissory note was denominated in
HKS.

RZZF-NFNAA+T—B  AXEER—2E
ME=F TR FE5,000,0007T 7 &
BERARRE - AL RRIZFMN TSR B
EHRA—EEF NEBE_T_—%=A
=t—HILFE - %E}ET%%EEA_E_?
NATBEERT NWE—FPRRE-T——F
AUA+HE -

REBE-_ZT-_F=—A=+—BHILFE #
ABHER T _—FNAATHER - RE
—HEREZZFE__FAATH-

REBE_Z-__F=-A=+—HILFEE "
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BN
Number of shares Share capital
BiH%AE K&
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E--F —E-C “E--F
'000 '000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tk #RTR BETT
Authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: FEAERR00I T AT EBE
At the beginning and the end of the financial year  INETBLEFEFMRER 10,500,000 10,500,000 105,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01 ~ BREEAK001TZEETT
each: RERERR -
At the beginning of the financial year RIBEEED 7,357,008 7,357,008 73,570 73,570
- Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note) —RPEE R (M) (225) - @ -
At the end of the financial year RIBREEER 7,356,783 7,357,008 73,568 73570

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z=F = —4F =H=+—HIFEZ

Note: MIsE
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company repurchased its own HE_Z-_—F=-A=+—"HIFE  ARQFEBH
shares through the Stock Exchange as follows: RFTEIEERERG - TR
No. of
ordinary
shares of
HK$0.01 each Aggregate
SREE consideration
B#0.01TTZ Price per share paid
Month of repurchase BEA 3 HERNE BRES AR
Highest Lowest
BEHE RIERE
’000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
FAE B W BEET T
April 2021 —E_—FMA 225 0.079 0.079 17
The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase. iR B RS RIS o
2022 2021
ol S —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT IT
Liability components ARES
Current liabilities mEAE
— Convertible bond 3 (“CB 3”) (Notes i & i) — AR E A ([ AT IR E A3 )
(P i i) - 327,971
— Convertible bond 4 (“CB 4”) (Note iv) — AR EHA([ AR ES4])
(Bt aFiv) 893,329 -
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
- CB4 (Note iv) — AI AR E FH4 (M 7Eiv) - 813,277
893,329 1,141,248
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£ PF 9 85 i 3 B

For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

CB3 CB4 Total
RBESFs  THRRES4 &kt
(Notes i &ii & i) (Note iv)
GEDO) GELY)
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fiyx BETT BT BT
Liability component at 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZFMA—AZAEDH 367,591 740,476 1,108,067
Add: Effective interest expense mn:ERMNEER 9 82,776 72,801 155,577
Reclassification of accrued coupon BN BRI ZE A ENER
interest to other payables (20,461) - (20,461)
Derecognition upon modification of BT ATARE SR IUEER
convertible bonds 30(v) (344,326) - (344,326)
Recognition of new liability component upon — PMEET AT AR & 5 A5 RE A 318
modification of convertible bonds aEHn 30(v) 275,005 - 275,005
Repayment B (32,614) - (32,614)
Liability component at 31 March 2021 RZEZ-F=f=+—-H2
BEHn 327,971 813,277 1,141,248
Add: Effective interest expense m:ERMEER 9 24,478 80,052 104,530
Reclassification of accrued coupon BNHBETEEEEMEMNER
interest to other payables (9,199 - (9,199
Reclassification of convertible bonds to BN ERRESEEME
other bond 31 (279,500) - (279,500)
Repayment B (63,750) - (63,750)
Liability component at 31 March 2022 W-E-_—#=A=+—-HZ
aELH - 893,329 893,329

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

The Group issued CB 3 with 7% coupon rate at a total principal value
of HK$279,500,000 on 17 February 2017 and 14 March 2017 to an
independent third party. The convertible bonds will mature in 3 years
from date of issue at its principal amount or can be converted into
328,823,529 shares at any time between the three months after the
date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The convertible
bonds will be matured on 17 February 2020 and 14 March 2020
respectively. The Company shall have the right, as from the expiry of
15 months following the date of issue of the convertible bond, to partly
or fully redeem the convertible bond early, by giving one month’s prior
notice in writing to the bondholder.

The Group further issued CB 3 at a total principal value of
HK$630,000,000 on 28 April 2017, 5 June 2017, 28 June 2017 and
30 June 2017 to independent third parties. The convertible bonds
will mature in 3 years from date of issue at its principal amount or can
be converted into 741,176,471 shares at any time between the three
months after the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity
date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.85 per share. The
Company shall have the right, as from the expiry of 15 months following
the date of issue of the convertible bond, to partly or fully redeem the
convertible bond early, by giving one month’s prior notice in writing to
the bondholder.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible bonds with principal
amounts of HK$24,886,000 were converted into approximately
29,277,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the
fixed conversion price of HK$0.85 per share. As a result, the amount
of approximately HK$17,745,000 in convertible bond reserves was
transferred within equity.

All the new shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2020 rank
pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

BiEE

AEBR-_Z—+F-_A+tAR-FT—LtF
Eﬂ+@5%ﬁ$iwﬁﬁ%MW9%Q%O
TI%EERZ A HRESST —BBILE=
75 o AR REF SR E AN S S A 31T B AT
SENFBHREHFIFTEARBITAIRKRES
ZBE=EABZEERA REER) REES
%7 ¥ 0.85 T 2 bt R ¥ #2 5328,823,520 1% i
7 ARBRESFS IR =—_E=TF=_A+tH
M—ZE-_TE= A+WARE - RRAQTE
BHEBRBTAHARES 2 A% 15 A Emits
BRAEFFEASE—EAZEEZETBENM
B SRS R E L A R ES -

AEEBR_ZE—+FWA-+NH - ZF—+t
FXRARB —E—+tFXAZ+N\BE=E
—tFEXRAZTRE—BBITARASBELSBE
630,000,000 T2 AR EFSTELE=TF °
ARRES SR E AR B %17 A HR3F
AR HSRESF B ARBITARRKRES 2H
%= AZEmA LR ) TR BRERE
#0.857C 2 tL R A 741,176,471 I I (7 ©
AAREHERRITIRRES 2 A%15(EA
ERREBARESFFAEARE —EAZELE
T &N T 3010 SR BIR R B AT R (E 5 ©

nEzE —EEZA=Z+—BLFE "
K@%ﬁ%%%mwmngT%h%
FEREFEREGREE0SSTEERA
%mzwmm&g&ﬁ@%%ommZ$A
AIEAR At TRREFFEBEOBE
17,745,0007T 2 & BB AN EZR A
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z —Z—
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Notes: (Continued)

(i)

i)

On 15 August 2019, the Company had early redeemed the CB 3
partially with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 at redemption
amount of approximately HK$10,211,000, which held by a bondholder,
Safe Arena Limited. The accrual interests up to redemption date are
approximately HK$529,000, which included accrued coupon interest
of approximately HK$211,000 up to redemption date. The fair value
of the liability component was remeasured at the date of redemption
with the difference between the fair value of the liability component
and the redemption cost allocated to equity component and the equity
component of approximately HK$8,650,000 had been derecognised.
As a result, an aggregated loss of approximately HK$129,000 (i.e. loss
on early redemption of liability component of the convertible bonds and
early redemption options of approximately HK$120,000 and HK$9,000
respectively) was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Upon the redemption of the convertible bonds, the remaining value
of the conversion option reserve of approximately HK$8,650,000 was
released to accumulated losses.

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into the deed of amendments
(the “Amendment Deed”) with the bondholder to extend the maturity
date of CB 3 with the principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and
HK$59,500,000 from 17 February 2020 to 17 August 2020 and from
14 March 2020 to 14 September 2020 respectively (the “Extended
CBs”). On 23 March 2020 (the “Date of Modification”), the Company
had, with the approval of the bondholder and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, executed the Amendment Deed. The bondholder
has granted to the Company a waiver in respect of the failure of the
Company to pay any principal or interest on the convertible bonds when
due under the terms and conditions to the extent necessary and solely
to effect the Amendment Deed. Details are set out in the Company’s
announcements on 13 March 2020 and 23 March 2020.

At the Date of Modification, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial assets in
respect of early redemption options of the Extended CBs immediately
before the modification were approximately HK$314,301,000,
HK$112,857,000 and nil, respectively. According to a valuation
report issued by an independent professional valuer not connected
with the Group, the fair value of the new liability component, the
equity component and the derivative financial assets in respect of
early redemption options of the Extended CBs immediately following
the modification are approximately HK$271,974,000, nil and nil,
respectively. Upon modification, the original CB 3 was extinguished
and a gain of approximately HK$42,327,000 arising from the fair
value difference of the liability portion was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 31 March 2020 and an aggregate amount of
HK$112,857,000 from the equity conversion reserve was transferred
to the accumulated losses. The effective interest rate of the new liability
components of Extended CBs are 18.33% to 19.55% whereas the
effective interest rate of the liability components immediately before the
modification are 14.3% to 14.7%.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

Notes: (Continued)

(v)

On 27 May 2020, the Group entered into the deed of amendments (the
“Amendment Deed 1”) with the bondholder to extend the maturity date
of CB 3 with principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000
from 17 August 2020 to 31 May 2021 and from 14 September 2020
to 31 May 2021, respectively (the “Extended CBs”). On 9 June 2020
(the “Date of Modification 1”), the Company, with the approval of
the bondholder and the Stock Exchange, executed the terms of the
Amendment Deed 1. The bondholder has granted to the Company
a waiver in respect of the failure of the Company to pay any principal
or interest on the convertible bonds when due under the terms and
conditions to the extent necessary and solely to effect the Amendment
Deed 1. Details are set out in the Company’s announcements on 27
May 2020 and 9 June 2020.

At the Date of Modification 1, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial assets in
respect of early redemption options of the Extended CBs immediately
before the modification were approximately HK$279,884,000, Nil
and Nil, respectively. According to a valuation report issued by an
independent professional valuer not connected with the Group, the fair
value of the new liability component, the equity component and the
derivative financial assets in respect of early redemption options of the
Extended CBs immediately following the modification are approximately
HK$222,959,000, Nil and Nil, respectively. Upon modification,
the original CB 3 was extinguished and a gain of approximately
HK$56,924,000 arising from the fair value difference of the liability
portion was recognised in profit or loss during the six months ended
30 September 2020. The effective interest rate of the new liability
components of Extended CBs are 35.91% whereas the effective interest
rate of the liability components immediately before the modification are
14.37%.

i ()
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Notes: (Continued)

(v)

(Continued)

On 15 June 2020, the Group entered into the deed of amendments (the
“Amendment Deed 2”) with the bondholder to extend the maturity date
of CB 3 with principal amounts of HK$63,750,000 from 5 June 2020
to 30 June 2021 (the “Extended CB”). On 29 June 2020 (the “Date
of Modification 2”), the Company, with the approval of the bondholder
and the Stock Exchange, executed the terms of the Amendment Deed
2. The bondholder has granted to the Company a waiver in respect
of the failure of the Company to pay any principal or interest on the
convertible bonds when due under the terms and conditions to the
extent necessary and solely to effect the Amendment Deed 2. Details
are set out in the Company’s announcements on 15 June 2020 and 29
June 2020.

At the Date of Modification 2, the carrying amounts of the liability
components, the equity components, and derivative financial assets in
respect of early redemption options of the Extended CB immediately
before the modification were approximately HK$64,442,000,
HK$69,783,000 and Nil, respectively. According to a valuation report
issued by an independent professional valuer not connected with
the Group, the fair value of the new liability component, the equity
component and the derivative financial assets in respect of early
redemption options of the Extended CB immediately following the
modification are approximately HK$52,046,000, Nil and Nil, respectively.
Upon modification, the original CB 3 was extinguished and a gain of
approximately HK$12,396,000 arising from the fair value difference of
the liability portion was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 March 2021 and an aggregate amount of HK$69,783,000 from the
equity conversion reserve was transferred to the accumulated losses.
The effective interest rate of the new liability components of Extended
CBs are 30.99% whereas the effective interest rate of the liability
components immediately before the modification are 17.85%.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

Notes: (Continued)

V)

On 11 June 2021, the Company entered into the third deed of
amendments (the “Third Amendment Deed”) to further extend the
maturity date of such other bond with the principal amounts of
HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000 (the “Relevant CB”) to 31 May
2022 (the “Third Amendments”). The bondholder has granted to the
Company a waiver in respect of the failure of the Company to pay any
principal or interest on the convertible bonds when due under the terms
and conditions to the extent necessary and solely to effect the Third
Amendment Deed. The conversion rights attaching to the Relevant
CB expired on 31 May 2021. As such, the Relevant CB has become a
straight debt and no longer been classified as convertible debt securities
but other bond. Details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 11 June 2021 and 17 June 2021.

In June 2021, the Company has settled all remaining CB 3 amounting
to approximately HK$68,500,000 (including principal amounts of
approximately HK$63,750,000 and interest payable amounts of
approximately HK$4,750,000).

The Group issued CB 4 with zero coupon rate at a total principal value
of HK$1,000,000,000 to the substantial shareholder of the Company
on 26 March 2018 as the consideration for the acquisition of 100%
equity interest of United Faith Group pursuant to the acquisition
agreement dated 21 June 2017. Details of such acquisition are set
out in Company'’s circular dated on 28 February 2018. The convertible
bonds will mature at five years after issuing of the convertible bond. The
detail maturity dates of each batch of issue are shown in following table
at its principal amount or can be converted into 1,250,000,000 shares
at any time between the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the
maturity date at the bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.8 per share.

et (&)

W)
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—E—FRA=T—BEE - ALt - HEET
BREFEXNALBEE  THESEAME
REXKFS  MeEEMtES - FEHERAAF
AfAE—Z-_—F A+-—HERZZEZ—FX
A++tBHI M -

RIZE=—FXA  ARBRCHEMEHTA
R E#HS - &L AB%68,500,0007T (B1E
N4 ER 4975 863,750,000 K & 1 FI| 8 48 s
4,750,0007T) °

AEER - N\F=ZA-+RBAETESHE
#E /578 %1,000,000,0007T 2 R S A # R E
FATARRREERER  FRARERHA-E
—tFERAZ T BB GELEEREEE
EHERNRE - ZRBEEDFBERRAR
AIBAZZT—N\F-AZ+/\BM@ER - 7]
BRESFERBETARBESROFRS - &
BITHOR 2 SR A N T RIRE A FATR
HEAFEARBTAIRRESZAZER
H ERRERS ) R B IR OB 08T Z LR
#17%1,250,000,0008% A% 17
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z —Z—

ZFEZA=1—HIFE

Notes: (Continued)

et - ()

()  (Continued) v )
During the year ended 31 March 2020, convertible bonds with principal BEZZT-TF=A=+—AILFE  £&58
amounts of HK$20,000,000 were converted into approximately ,%%20,000,000%27@&%%5&lmi&ﬁ
25,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the BEERE0.8TTEE R A %)25,000,000 8% &
fixed conversion price of HK$0.8 per share. As a result, the amount REEEE0.01 T2 ANARI LB - Bt » 4
of approximately HK$14,872,000 in convertible bond reserves was 7 1514,872,000 T B A = A 2 PR R E 5
transferred within equity. K
All the new shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2020 rank REBEZ-_Z-_ZEF=A=+—RBILFEETHN
pari passu with the existing shares in all respects. 2EHROHES AEHEREROZE RS
£z e
(vl The fair values of the above convertible bonds were valued by an (Vi) MAT R E S 2 A BT RB Y [HER P E
independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and wﬁﬁ%aﬂﬁ&uuu’ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂj( hERT DR
Advisory Limited (“JLL"), as at issue date, early redemption date and BITAE -  REBELBHRETBEETS
modification date. The fair values of above convertible bonds as at B o Pt AT ARESF FMEET B Hi1 S5 B EA2
Date of Modification 1 and Date of Modification 2 were valued by an K ARERBY AEMBEERTEER QST
independent valuer, International Valuation Limited. CB 3 comprise a HE - TR ESHIBIEAEN RiERE R
liability component and an equity conversion component whereas CB 4 B - MAlRREF4IBEEESN D RERHE
comprise a liability component and equity conversion component. Eby o
The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated by using FEMEHFHBO A Lﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁiﬂﬂ?\—ﬂgﬁﬂ
a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-convertible RATHRRES 2 TiHF R HE - AR ES
bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were valued by using the ZARENFER B ETERIEITE
Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual amount, representing the B - BREGEERERBRID 2 BE) DA
value of the equity conversion component, is included in the convertible KA ANELERE T 2 TRRES —#&
bond — equity conversion reserve under equity attributable to the owners eI o
of the Company.
HK$ 000
BT
At 1 April 2021 N E-—FMA—H -
Recognition of other bond upon modification of (ERT AT EHE B AT AR ESERE AL
convertible bond from convertible bonds &7 279,500
At 31 March 2022 RZE__F=A=+—H 279,500

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company entered
into the Third Amendment Deed to further extend the maturity
date of CB 3 with the principal amounts of HK$220,000,000
and HK$59,500,000 to 31 May 2022 (the “Relevant CB”). The
conversion rights attached to the Relevant CB expired on 31 May
2021. As such, the Relevant CB has become a straight debt and
no longer been classified as convertible debt securities but other
bond. The effective interest rate is 7% per annum.

On 24 June 2022, the Company entered into the fourth deed of
amendments to further extend the maturity date of the other bond
in the principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000
to 31 May 20283.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax relates to the same fiscal authority.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities, after set off certain deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities of the same taxable entity, for financial reporting

HE-ZT-__F=-A=+—AHALFE " =&
NAEIFIMIEFIRES  WE—FSERA S
7% 75 220,000,000 7T & % # 59,500,000 7T
AR ESFSMEIHEE S -__F A A
=+—H( @AM RRES]) - HETKR
RESWEHERESNR T =_—FAHA
=+—RB2E - Bt - BETRRKRESEK
REBER  THYERVBRESRE
MeEHMES - BREFESETFT% -

MRZZZZFAZFTAE - KRFEILE
M EETHE - LE— PR ASERBE
220,000,000 7T ¥ 7% % 59,500,000 7T 2 H
BEEMIPEAERE-_E-_=FRAA=F+—
E| °

A ATEORBR BT 2 NI B IR A E
HHERHRAAEREEEMBHRER —
BB - BREMEHEEMELEMRSF
HAEEEEH o

AU BREBNME  BEEHBREENEE
RIBHARERTERNE TRERAEE
FAERERRAER - 2T

puUrposes:
The Group
AEH
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BRTIT FEHETIT
Deferred tax assets RETHTEE E 54,791 39,573
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIBEE 3,265 2,943
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities/(assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

ATBAFEMBEFECERAZ TERT
BIEEE(BE)REEHER

years:
Allowance for
impairment of
loanand  Accelerated
interest tax
receivable  Depreciation Tax losses LAT Total
BHERR
FIRCHE iz
B REHE REER HitBER 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BRI BETT
At 1 April 2020 RZZ-ZEMA—H (43,400) 425 (425) 5,012 (38,388)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss BRI/ (GEA) 3827 (425) 425 (2,399) 1,428
Exchange redlignment & jL AR - - - 330 330
At 31 March 2021 RZE=-F=A=1—H (39,578) - - 2,943 (36,630)
Credited to profit or loss RE&EEA (14,830) - - (194) (15,024)
Exchange realignment A% (388) - - 516 128
At 31 March 2022 RZB-Z5=A=1-H (54,791) - - 3,265 (51,526

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$544,768,000 (2021: approximately
HK$502,110,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of (2021: Nil)
tax losses.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining unused tax losses of approximately HK$544,768,000
(2021: approximately HK$520,110,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are
losses of approximately HK$5,300,000 (2021: approximately
HK$5,300,000) that will expire in the next five years. Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

RMEHR  ZEEBEARAPHREEELD
544 768,000 (ZFE = —F : LB
502,110,000t ) A] K S8 R AR A FI - BEAE L
MEBEERELEHEEE(ZS - —F ¢
e

R AR R BT RIR 2 AT TER - B0 B ke
ToRE) AT IEEIE L5 %544,768,0007T( =
T~ —4F {78 1520,110,0007T ) HER(E{a]
BERIEEE - RIERRIEEERIEERK
AL JE 2 5 1B 4978 5,300,000 T ( = F
——%F : #)75%5,300,0007T) ° EfbEET
ERREAAEES o
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$768,280 (2021:
approximately HK$1,761,700). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$97,573,000
(2021: approximately HK$77,159,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes convertible bonds, lease liabilities, bank borrowing, other
bond, promissory note and amount due to a related company net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risk associated with each
class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

RIEBR - NEBOATNAEREZELD
BB Te8280 L (ZE - —F « LB
1,761,7007T) ° BT A REEVS FE R T & 7
AB)AR N AIHURE R 258 - S B AT 40T
EREEERTAEERIBEE -

BIECEMSE L A-TTN\F—HF—H
R B B A R TR A E R 2 R 8 E
BUTFEIF - WENE MM BRI ATEHE
M8 A Rl 2 2Er A FIXE#E97,573,0007L( =
T —4F 8 H77,159,0007T ) FE (L 2 ETRE
EREEHIBEELEE  REALRERERE
IR S TR AR 2 R R R SR
ZRBT AR RERA A TE B A5 2R B A -

AREERLANEE  DRREENEE
AN UHEEEEE - AREBELE
BRI EHAEEFDRADR - AEH
BREWE F—EEEETE -

AEBZEARBREGHFHE(BRREEK
B HEARE  |RITEX - EES &
AEBEMEN —BREEQRERR) - MRRE
KR EEMARNRRHEE ARE#ER (R
FERAS K ) o

ARBESERRFERGEE - (FRZRE
Z—BD  ARREFEBEREAGRH L
BARARAR - AEEEREBEARRES
ZHERERE  BRIRNRE - BITHREKR
D EEEIA R BT TR E RS S R A E R AF
MEERELERE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments (a) BT AR
2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Financial assets ERIEE
Financial assets at FVTPL RIBZRFIR A SERIE 2
SREE 33,043 34,222
Financial assets at amortised cost BREBEN AT E2 S RERE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREAFREEEY) 1,974,236 2,508,287
2,007,279 2,542,509
Financial liabilities eMaR
Financial liabilities measured at amortised BEIERAGTEZ2RMEE
cost 1,256,223 1,592,793
Financial risk management objectives and (b) £REEERBHHRBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include other
receivables and deposits, loan and interest receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other payables, promissory note, amount due
to a related company, other bond, bank borrowing and
convertible bonds. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AEENTEZER T AREHMEKER
RAEEE - BREREAE - RERER
BANEREZEREE  RelRE
HEY  EHMEMENER  AAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate promissory note, other bond,
lease liabilities and loan and interest receivables.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank borrowing and
cash and cash equivalents carried at prevailing market
rates.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation
of prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s
floating-rate bank borrowing.

The directors of the Company consider that the
interest rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
borrowing and bank balances is insignificant as the
outstanding balances are not significant.

(b) EMEEEEEMRBE ®)

AEERBETENREAL TR - H
ffEsm HERBEMRERERK
M BAEmERA ENERER o

AREBTANBRITHHMEG R
ZAERITERMRERAEF
EBYHERREREN KRR

SR B A IR R SRR
AW EEESEENXER
A #5754 T8 HA 3R B KM R [ B B
ZERME ML EITE

AEERSRBEAT ZMEE
BRAMERSE SRR EE—
ANFH - ARERSREN KR
RERETRAEEFBRITHE
A IRT 5 M R 2 KB

)
ZN

AATEERS - ARTRIRT
2 RIRIT 4 2 FIR AR I T
EX RRERAEESAKRLTE
j(o
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

(b) EMEEEEEMRBE ®)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC
with most transactions mainly settled in HK$ and
RMB. As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group
holds financial assets at FVTPL (see Note 20) and
bank balances (see Note 24) denominated in AUD,
USD, RMB and GBP. Foreign exchange risk arises
when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets are denominated in a currency that is not the
Group’s functional currency. The Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging the potential foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
denominated in currencies other than the respective
functional currencies of the relevant group entities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

AEBTEREERPRELEE
% ERBMRGEEUNEE R
ARBHE RZTE-_—_FR=
E-—F=fA=+—H KX&£H
BBENRT - E1 - ARBRE
FEHEZRNIBERIZANERRE
2o REE(RMFE20) RIRTTA
ER(RPIEE24)  SNE R E K
REERHKEHEREE AL IE
REBEWNEEEM 2 ERHERE
B o RE BN EINEERBUR -
AR - EEESERIINERR K
AP A B 2 R ENRB T INE R

i o
AA

R|EHR - NREEBNKREHE
EER2SEANEEEUIINZ
B ECEREE REAEN
™

Assets
BE

2022 2021
—E-— — T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
AUD SRIT 5 37
UsD ETT 37 116
GBP S - 29,709
Others Ef 45 47

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As the Group had no material foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at 31 March 2021
and 2022, no significant impacts on the results of
the Group would arise from the changes in foreign
currency rates, accordingly no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and these
investments are classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position as financial assets at
FVTPL. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the management has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If the share price of the respective listed equity
securities had been increased/decreased by 20%
and all other variables were held constant, the post-
tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$6,609,000
(2021: approximately HK$6,844,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

(b) £EREEEEEHNRBE®E)

BRE DM
HRAEER T _—FR_-F
ZZF=A=t+—H#EENE
RINEHEEREE - AEED
FETERESMNEZ S M X BN
BATE  HUETREBED
i e

AEEBRE FTRAZELRE
i E R A EEERE - MzER
fﬁﬁ’\\/—\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ%@wﬁﬁ@%ﬁé
FIEAABEREZSREE -

B E B R R R R Z&ﬁ@
EBEERZERR o 1IN - BERE
BRI/ NAERERRR -
WA R B B R o

RB|ERR » T ZFREDM
B R % P E e A AN B AR B g B
ﬁ_‘io

WEBLEMBEAZESNMEREL
/T 20% - BFFA H &
EEF/TE  AEBREEZT
T TF=ZA=+—BILFEZR
Bite B A A IR D KN
6,609,0007L(ZF=—F : 4978
#£6,844,0007T) *+ IR NIBE
REANEREBZSMEEZA
SEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The credit risk of our Group mainly arises from cash and
cash equivalents, loan and interest receivables, other
receivables and deposits. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent our Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

The Group recognised 12m ECL for loan and
interests receivables with gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,037,040,000 (2021: approximately
HK$2,354,904,000) as at 31 March 2022, based on
individually assessment for significant debtors by applying
weighted average expected credit loss rate of 10.76%
(2021: 6.74%). Allowance for impairment of approximately
HK$60,423,000 is provided as at 31 March 2022 (2021:
reversal of approximately HK$19,696,000). The directors
of the Company consider that the changes in expected
credit loss rates is mainly due to economic condition of the
industry.

The weighted average expected credit loss rates are
estimated based on forward-looking information and used
appropriate model and assumption in its measurement of
expected credit losses. Such forward-looking information is
used by the management of the Group to assess both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date. The details are disclosed in Note 23.

Management considered other receivables and deposits
to be low credit risk and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12m ECL.

(b) £EREEEEEHNRBE®E)

ﬁémﬂﬁzﬁﬁw’ﬂlﬁuaﬂﬁ , u@J:
R FHEREREBER10. 76%( -
T —F 1 6.74%) - ERERER
B 121 A Tﬁi/ﬁméggﬂﬁﬁgﬁwfﬁ
#78%2,037,040,0007T (T = — 4 :
4775142 354,004,0000T) e RZE -
FZA=T—AHERERELNEE
60,423,0007T (=& = — 4 : #EI4)H
#19,696,0007T) * RAFIEERA -
BHEEBBREH T EHNITELE
AR o

IR IE RS & B R TR IR ATHE 1
AR LA ERREEERMAEEER
RBEGETTRHE - AKEEEE R ER
AIEMEE R AR MRS B E R SR
KA © B BIRFIBIPIE23 K ER

BEERS BRI IZENE
R AR - Fit R F AR A RE
wAIE AR EEEEARR
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z -—F - —F=H=+—HIIFZ

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o Internal credit rating;

° actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

o actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower;

o significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from
the Group’s loan financing business, 2% (2021: 3%) of the
total gross loan and interest receivables as at 31 March
2022 was due from the Group’s largest customer and 8%
(2021: 16%) of the total gross loan and interest receivables
as at 31 March 2022 was due from the Group’s five largest
customers for the Group’s loan financing business.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z—-ZF - —#F=H=+—HIFF/E

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) £EREEEEEHNRBE®E)

policies (Continued)

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for loan and interest receivables is in the PRC,
which accounted for 100% (2021: 99%) of loan and interest
receivables as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned

by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework
comprises the following categories:

Category Description

ZK%l&iﬂzE%J > EWE SR RFEZ
EERBEFRFE  (hRZTZ=F
&777 F=A= + B2 ERER
EFEZ100%(ZF=—%F 1 99%) °

RBEEEERBRAR - THRNEF
I RESEREETRBBREE IR
SRR ZIRTT ©

AEE B AT EERBRFRIERBEIA
SblE

Basis for recognising ECL

A il ikt EERMESGRnELE
Performing  For financial assets where there has low risk of default or 12m ECL

has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition and that are not credit impaired (refer to as

Stage 1)
R#f EBARBEIESNE VIR EERRARE AEEM - 12{E AFE B E &R

BEERECERMEE(RE—RER)

Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that are
not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 2)

A k¢ BYIREERE - FERRAREMEREEREZ ©F
BE(REZRER)

Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred
(refer to as Stage 3)

EH E-HYFBEEHHEREENTEHRRKRREEET
NP BE  ZEERTEREERE(RE=RR)

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery

i sH B ORI EAERS ARG AR & 8 B 75 IR 5 1A A 5k B W B 5k

THR) A BT

Lifetime ECL — not credit impaired

EEFENEREEEE - BEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit impaired

EEFENEREERE - EERE

Amount is written off

FRIAH
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EMEEEEBOHRBE#)
policies (Continued)

The tables below detail the credit quality of the Group’s TRAMVEAEBESRHEEEEEL
financial assets, as well as the Group’s maximum exposure EURAERZEERBRFTIAT TN
to credit risk by credit risk rating grades. KNeERR -
Gross  Allowance Net
Internal 12m ECL or carrying for carrying
credit rating lifetime ECL amount  impairment amount
12 RMGEHEES
ABEENFE  EEFANANEHER IRE#E wER R RS E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI AETT  ARTR

2022

B

Loan and interest receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired and 2,037,040 (219,165) 1,817,875
assessed individually)

FEME R RAE, R#f RERAEHEEER(TECERER
{ERIETTAIE)

Deposits and other receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired and 4,241 - 4,241
assessed individually)

7e REMEKERR Rif 12EAAEREEFR(IEEERER
(BRI TEE)

2021

—T-—fF

Loan and interest receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired and 2,353,904 (158,742) 2,195,162
assessed individually)

FEE R RAE R#f RERAEHEEFR(TECERER
{ERETTIE)

Deposits and other receivables Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired and 6,610 - 6,610
assessed individually)

B REMEKERS Rif 12EAEREEFR(TREERER

{ERIETTRIE)
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) EMEEEEBOHRBE#)
policies (Continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors EERDECREBR AT  NEBERK
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed HRREERSEYNEERER BT
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s BZKFE - AR ARSI E S
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash B WRPRERERB 2L -
flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TREIAEBESTESRIBE 2 TR
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table BHVFEIFEIE - YT AR EE TR
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows BEXNFEF Az RBERIR
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which Reneme o  TREENERFAEE
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both I °

interest and principal cash flows.

More than
Ondemand  one year but Total
or within less than  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years cash flows Amount
BREKH Bi-F RUBRRE
R—FR BIRBEF RERE IREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT W W #RTT

2022 —E_C

Non-derivative financial liabilities T REE

Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRR 36,664 - 36,664 36,664

Promissory note A ER 5,764 - 5,764 5,639

Amount due to arelated company B —RIEEEA BRI 41,091 = 41,091 41,091

Convertible bonds AaRES 980,000 - 980,000 893,329

Other bond HtbfE% 299,065 - 299,065 279,500

Lease liabilities MERE 2,445 1,427 3,872 3,775
1,365,029 1,427 1,366,456 1,259,998

smpmmaamas 195
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

34. @Rt T H )

(b) &R FEEEHMORBE®)

Liquidity risk (Continued) BN & W PR (#)
Liquidity tables (Continued) =474 IEAC )
More than
On demand one year but Total
or within lessthan  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years cash flows Amount
RERY iR —F AEBRRS
R—FR BIRmE mERH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
2021 ZEC-F
Non-derivative financial liabilities FirtzBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R EMENIRR 47,033 - 47,033 47,033
Promissory note ERER 5,500 - 5,500 5,389
Amount due to arelated company  [Ef—HEEERAER 15,239 - 15,239 15,239
Bank borrowing HITER - 414,595 414,595 383,884
Convertible bonds ABRES 366,807 980,000 1,346,807 1,141,248
Lease liabilities HERE 7,923 - 7,923 7,735
442,502 1,394,595 1,837,097 1,600,528
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(c) Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period for recurring measurement, grouped
into Levels 1 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable in accordance to the Group’s accounting policy.

(c) EHMBERRRAREZLR

EitHE
TREH#SBTAZ O - THRBMES
M ERSRERRZANENE - XL
REASEGHBRER A E A B
ZRREDERE -

2022 2021
= —E-—F
Level 1 Level 1
£— F—1
HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
Financial assets at FVTPL RRBRBRAREEREEZ
SREE
Listed equity investments R EE 33,043 34,222

There were no transfers between level of fair value hierarchy
in current and prior years.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other current financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding fair values
due to short-term maturities. The directors of the Company
consider that carrying amounts of other non-current
financial assets and liabilities approximate to their fair value
as the impact of discounting of non-current assets is not
significant and the non-current liabilities are amortised at
market interest rates.

WAFEBEFE - FRAERFIE

ARABEERA - AREHRMEE
K& GBI SRR MIABR SRR AN R ik 2 B
fREEREEKBEZREEEER
2 RAEEE - ARFEZRS - B
RIERBEERR 2 FEALTNEAKIE
MBRBETEM SR - UL MIE
nBEMEERABROIEREAE
HE e
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(@) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases out investment property under operating
leases in the PRC. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 20 years. None of the leases includes variable
lease payments. All are fixed lease payments.

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in place at the reporting date will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

(a) EEHEXIE

AEERTERBELEMEHLEY
X mEHBER20F - BEHRE
BEFEHENK - rEHEREEH
BN -

R¥E BT A AR EHE T 2 KRB
BB A AR B A TR
Y ER -

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

B —ET—4F

=B=+—H —H=+—~H

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT BT T

Within one year —FR 207 199
Between one and two years —FEMF 207 199
Between two and five years MEERF 623 596
Over five years HiBhF 2,196 2,310
3,233 3,304
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HE T - —F=HA=+—HIFE

(b) Capital commitments (b) BFFKiE
2022 2021
= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
For properties under development BHEEYYE 262,578 132,279

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to its employees, the directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group and to encourage them to
contribute further to the development of the Group so as to
enhance value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

As at 31 March 2022, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 717,000,000 (2021: 1,184,000,000), representing
9.8% (2021: 16.1%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date.

The total number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit was renewed, at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate
Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which might be
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

— R B ([ &8 D RER T ——
FAAZT - RBBIRBRERRER
TEENIAEREE  BEFEARHMBAMEZ
2EER/RFARNKERME B RUE LB
KR WHBRERAREZERERS
7 wmREARRRERD ZBE - #im
SARARREERBERESE -

RZBZZF=A=+—8  REXTE
ERHBNRTEZBREZRNEE R
717,000,000/% (== = —% : 1,184,000,000
B - HERZBARRARDEITRIHE.8%
(ZZ=—%:161%) °

RIEZ AT B AR E AL BIFA R 2 B A i
Z B BBAFEBA R AR R R EZ
Bl HE BT 210% ([ 51 SR ER
B FRERLEETHASREREE
B W% 10%RBEE IR ZRE - ARE
ZaT 8| R EMBERE S ERHERKR
118 2 P A REETTIE 2 BRI T(E M 3217
ZREBRMDER  TRBARAR D
112 B An 4882 30% °
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200

The number of shares in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any one year was not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without
prior approval from the shareholders in general meeting.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder must be approved by independent
non-executive directors of the Company. Where any grant
of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director or any of their respective associates would
result in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options already granted and to be granted in excess
of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value
in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date
of such grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option might be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by
the board of directors which shall not be later than 10 years from
the date of grant.

The exercise price was determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the highest of the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the share on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant,
and the nominal value.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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BFER FERER AL 2 BRERN 2 A
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BTEMNES  FETHRABLFERREZ
B—BEREDELEARNR ZELIERTT
EERE - WEMETEREIELIENTE
FYWEZBHABEATRL 2 FAER
- gEYEEERAREAEIETZ@AR
HARI AT B R R 2 B AR T 51T
i FET 2 A RRIRGDBBERRR DT
IR AN 2 0.1% I (B B 8 18 % % 5,000,000 7T -
BB LB EEA A RIIRR 2 BRAE -

B HBERRANER L B BER21 B AREA
RO NABEATIAERER T 2 BARE -
FB R P AR AR A A B B % R 8 2 B R
[RAEAEBTE  EFSKRARARNE
HAE - ERBRTFENER L AR+
F o
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Details of specific categories of options granted under the share IRIRE IR B N 2 R BRI < 5
option scheme are as follows: BT
Fair value Fair value Fair value
Vesting Exercise at grant date at grant date at grant date
Date of grant period  Exercise period price  for consultants  for employees for directors
BREREL ERREL EEREY
fil=E FEY  EH fyid R ARE AEMARE REMARE
11 November 2015 Note 11 November 2015 to 10 November 2020 HK$0.638 HK$0.27 - -
“P-EEH-AT-B ME C3-EEt-AT-EZ T P - -
ZEIRET-ATH
28 December 2015 Note 28 December 2015 to 27 December 2020 HK$0.792 HK$0.35 - HK$0.35
“F-RE+ZAZTNR HiE “E-Af+-AZt/\BZE A%0.7927T %0357 - 0,357
ZE-REFCAC A
19 December 2016 Note 19 December 2016 to 18 November 2021 HK$0.738 HK$0.73 HK$0.73 -
ZE-R"ETZATAR ik ZE-RETZRTARE 07387 073 073 -
I A WA=
19 October 2017 Note 19 October 2017 to 18 October 2022 HK$0.488 HK$0.22 - -
ZE—+ETATAR ifd ZE+ETATNAEE 7HE0.488TC 0207 - -
ZECCETATR
11 April 2019 Note 11 April 2019 to 10 April 2024 HK$0.456 HK$0.2107 HK$0.2107 HK$0.224
“E-NFRAT-H fitt “E-NFMAT-RE AB04ser A0 EK0.2107T 02047
ZEIRENATA
Note: In accordance with the terms of the Scheme, these share options were MEE : ARIE IS - ZEREIREN S Y B8
vested at the date of grant. B
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The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the

TREEREE  EENERMBNARFRE

g . ———

FZA=Z+—HIFE

year ended 31 March 2022: A&
Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
at 1 April during  at 31 March
2021 the year 2022
R=B=—f R-B==f
mMA—H =B=+—-H
Option type BREER RRTHE FR%N RR{TE
Directors EE
11 April 2019 “Z-NEWAT—H 57,000,000 - 57,000,000
Employees E8
11 April 2019 “Z-NEWAT—H 231,000,000 - 231,000,000
Consultants B
19 December 2016 TR ¥+-A+NH 467,000,000  (467,000,000) -
19 October 2017 “Z—+ETHATIA 100,000,000 - 100,000,000
11 April 2019 “T-NENA+T—H 329,000,000 - 329,000,000
1,184,000,000  (467,000,000) 717,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FRA{THE 717,000,000
Weighted average exercise price IEFTHE HK$0.570 HK$0.738 HK$0.460
#%0.5707T #%0.738TC 7 %0.4607T

A total of 467,000,000 share options at the weighted average
exercise price of HK$0.738 lapsed during the year 31 March 2022
upon expiration of the options.

202  DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

EoEF

TREBRES  BRLBERMAFNARAE

options held by directors, employees and consultants during the BERNBZE T - —F=A=+—HILFE
year ended 31 March 2021:
Outstanding Granted Lapsed Outstanding
at 1 April during the during at 31 March
2020 year the year 2021
RZZ-ZF RZZ-—F
mA—A ZA=1+—-H
Option type BRERL RARITHR ERRH FRER EARTTE
Directors =
28 December 2015 “T-a%+ZAZ+NEB 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) -
11 April 2019 “E-NENAT—H 107,000,000 - (50,000,000) 57,000,000
Employees E&
19 December 2016 ZE-"F+ZATNH 53,000,000 - (53,000,000) -
11 April 2019 “T-NENAT—H 280,300,000 - (49,300,000) 231,000,000
Consultants B
11 November 2015 “T-nF+-At—H 50,000,000 — (50,000,000 -
28 December 2015 “E-AF+-A-tNH 275,460,000 —  (275,460,000) -
19 December 2016 “ERFTZATAR 467,000,000 - — 467,000,000
19 October 2017 —T—+F+ATNA 100,000,000 - — 100,000,000
11 April 2019 —Z-NENAT—H 329,000,000 - - 329,000,000
1,666,760,000 —  (482,760,000) 1,184,000,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FERA{THE 1,184,000,000
Weighted average exercise price IEF176E(E HK$0.608 - HK$0.701 HK$0.570
#10.6087T - Blorot %0570

A total of 482,760,000 share options at the weighted average
exercise price of HK$0.701 lapsed during the year 31 March 2021

upon expiration of the options.

-

BAEE

—F=ZA=+—HIFE  RE
4 $£482,760,00017 AN #E F 5
ITEBAEK0.701 TR B ARED R -
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204

Hong Kong

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, each of the Group companies (the “employer”) in Hong
Kong and its employees are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation. The contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to a cap
of HK$1,250 per month before 1 June 2014 and HK$1,500 per
month, since 1 June 2014 onwards. During the year ended 31
March 2022, the total amount contributed by the Group to this
scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss was approximately HK$207,000 (2021: approximately
HK$198,000).

The PRC

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to contribute to a state-managed retirement
plan for all its employees at a certain percentage of the basic
salaries of its employees. The state-managed retirement plan is
a defined contribution retirement plan and responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees. Under
the state-managed retirement plan, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. During the year ended
31 March 2022, the total amount contributed by the Group to
this scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss was approximately HK$234,000 (2021: approximately
HK$182,000).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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PLEDGE OF ASSET

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had pledged the
following assets to a bank to secure the banking facilities granted
to the Group:

38. EHEE
RIS K - AEED MBTERNTEE
VEABTAEBRITRENER -

2022 2021

= —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BETT BT

Properties under development BRPME - 980,382

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Such as disclosed in elsewhere of the consolidated financial
statement, the Group had the following significant transactions
with its related parties:

Compensation of key management personnel

The emoluments of the directors and other key management
personnel of the Group during the year were disclosed in Note 11.

39. ElBAT X5
%A GBS IRE i 5 PR EE S - A%
MO REABEATETTIEARS -
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FREERAEEHEGWEBEEAS ZEE
P11 IRE -
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2022 2021
= —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRTT BT IT
Non-current assets JERENEE
Interests in subsidiaries b B A E) 2 e 807,245 807,245
Non-current prepayments and deposits SEmBTEN A RIES 473 2,313
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,934 5,842
810,652 815,400
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  H A EUERTR « B KB ML E 637 592
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE LB B 2~ A BR X 962,522 1,362,813
Financial assets at fair value through RIERRIEAERE Y
profit or loss SREE 3,223 3,121
Cash and cash equivalents ReFReEEY 260 695
966,642 1,367,221
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables and accruals HE b eSS ER IR S FEET B A 25,884 32,035
Amount due to subsidiaries JERIB B A RIERR 88,372 88,511
Amount due to a related company JE —MRE QTR 50,478 34,138
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,824 5,627
Convertible bonds AR E S 893,329 327,971
Promissory note FHER 5,639 5,389
Other bond HEMESH 279,500 -
1,345,026 493,571
Net current (liabilities)/assets mE(&aRE) BERE (378,384) 873,650
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTBAR 432,268 1,689,050
Capital and reserves B B G iR
Share capital [N 73,568 73,570
Reserves (Note a) i (i Ea) 357,454 802,203
Total equity aEa 431,022 875,773
Non-current liabilities EREIAE
Convertible bonds AR ES - 813,277
Lease liabilities HERE 1,246 -
1,246 813,277
Total equity and liabilities wiEmNEE 432,268 1,689,050
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. R BIMTEARA R (#8)

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: P
(@)  Reserves @ e
Convertiole
honds -
Capital Share equity
Share  Contributed Other  redemption option  conversion  Accumulated
premium surplus resene reserve reserve resenve osses Total
(Note ) (Note i)
Wik
KRR SARR  EtEE  BOHG B BBER  EE %
(i) (Hizti)
NOTES HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
fizE AT BB BBTn BBfn BETR BETr AETr TR
At 1 Apri 2020 R-E-FTFMA-A 3313723 55,215 (795,421) 14 443765 824849 (2,935,432 906,713
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREERGA SRS
for the year - - - - - (104,510) (104,510)
Redemption of convertible bonds BT ARES 300) - - - - - (26,361) 26,361 -
Modification of convertble bond BTk ES 30) - - - - - (69,784) 69,784 -
Share option lapsed BRENRE - - - - (148,81) - 148,851 -
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-F=A=1-A 3313723 55,215 (795,421) 14 204914 728704 (2,794,946) 802,203
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Note: (Continued) Wik (&)

(@) Reserves (Continued) @) [ (&)
Convertible
bonds -
Capital Share equity

Share  Contributed Other  redemption option  conversion Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(Note ) (Note ii)

R

#% WRE  R5-RE
RiER  BARR  RbEE  WOEE B SBER  AHER ]
(M) (i)
NOTES HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
iEs3 ERTT  ERTR  ERTR  ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR

At 1 April 2021 R=F--FmA-A 3,313,723 55,215 (795,421) 14 294,914 728,704 (2,794,946) 802,203
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRERRGA SRS
forthe year - - - - - - (W4T (4T3

Share option lapsed BXElRE - - - = (142,064) = 142,064 =

Share repurchased and cancelled (Note 13 28 R (FH313) (19) = = = = = = (19)

At 31 March 2022 KRB —#=f=1-H 3,313,708 55,215 (795,421) 14 152,850 728,704  (3,097,616) 357,454

Notes: FisE

0] As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the contributed surplus of [0) KRB —FR-_TF-_—F=A=+—
approximately HK$55,215,000 represents the difference A SARBBLERES5,2150007L AT
between the fair value of net assets of subsidiaries acquired and WEEINBARNFEEZ AAEEANT
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the BT ITRGD cEE2H 2 Z5E
acquisition and approximately HK$48,989,000 represents the M #78 # 48,989,000 T8 B M A K& f% 17
amount being transferred from share capital and share premium wEELEADIRFEE L RE -

as distributable reserve.

Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the REARE-NAN—FRREEE
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to i) ARBZEHABBAIHD IR TR
shareholders. S

(i) Other reserve represents the differences amongst the investment (ii) HihERKEREEE 2R EMAE
cost for acquisition of United Faith Group and elimination of the BEERZZ—N\F=ZAZFT R BZREX
share capital of the United Faith on 26 March 2018. HiH 2 B ZERE -
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Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

D S 5 3 B

HE T - —F=HA=+—HIFE

RZBZZFR=ZZT=_—F=A=+—8"
ARBEEMBRABZFHBET

Place or country Issued and
of incorporation/ paid up share
establishment/  Class of shares capital/registered ~ Number Proportion of ownership interest and
Name of company operations held capital ~ of shares voting power held by the Company Principal activities
EMeL/ B/ BRRMERS/
AL ERMBEER  HRROEN ithEs  RO#E ENSEL A T B ES ] IERK
2022 2021
—ECCE “EC-E
Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indlrectly
E& [} B A
% % % %

Dingyi Jin Hui (Shenzhen) The PRC - Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Investment advisory
Investment Consulting RMB50,000,000 and paid-up service and loan
Limited*! capital of RMB22,082,000 financing

SELE(MRERN  9HE AfERARE  TER REEARBRER
BRAT 50,000,0007C R R HE

AE%22,082,00010

Golden Season Intemational ~ The BV Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 - 100 Securities trading and
Limitec? frading of wine

SEERARAR AB4BREE BB %7 BHEEREREE

Ease Main Limitec? The BVI Ordinary US$1,000 1,000 - 100 - 100 Investment holding

and securities
frading

RRERAR AB4EREE IR 1,000%7 RERRRESEE

Dingyi Financial Services Hong Kong - HKS1 1 - 100 - 100 Loan financing
Investment Limited®

SECERKRERRAR B BT ERRE

Dingyi Bao Yin (Shenzhen) ~ The PRC - Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Financial leasing and
Financial Leasing Limited ! RMBB300,000,000 and loan financing

paid-up capital of
RMB85,700,000

SRER(MRERE T AfERARE  TER BABERETHE

BRAR 800,000,000 R&RBRA
AE85,700,00070

Zhanjjang Xintai Investment ~ The PRC - RMB50,000,000 N/A - 100 - 100 Properties
Company Limited ! development

BIERREERAA i ARES0000000m  TEA YEE

official names of these companies are in Chinese.

! Company with limited liabilities established in the PRC.
2 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in British Virgin Islands.
8 Company with limited liabilities incorporated in Hong Kong.

The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities neither at
the end of both years nor at any time during both years.

* RAEWZ BIGEREHRSE - ZFRARZE
FHERERRI -

! RARBIRSZEREERR] -
2 NEBERRESEMAZIHARAF -
8 REREMAZNERAF] o

TA R (B 6 R S M8 5 2 AR D - 5B
BARGEEITEAEEES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 &2 —F - —F=H=+—HIFFE

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the original CB 3
was extinguished and the extended CB 3 at a fair value of
HK$275,005,000 was recognised. Details are set out in Note

30(v).

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

REBEE-Z-_—F=A=+—HULEFE &
AR ESFRIE FUFHEEERANBAES
#275,005,000 A IE R AT PR EAS © &F
BEERHIEES0(Y) ©

|E @%ﬁiﬁ%&?tfﬁé“iﬂ ° mﬁﬁxﬁiﬂﬁﬁ?
ERE F%EE%/ IEHRRRERENA G
ReRnERNVESRETBRSTENRIE -

Accrued
coupon
interest
Amount (included
dueto Amount in “trade
a related dueto  Convertible  Promissory Lease Bank and other
company a director bonds note liabilties borowng  payables”) Total
EHRE
JEft (;ABS
i ER-% Ak Rt
MRS EEE Br  ARRE  WEBRE  BORR  ENER) ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETr AT BEfr BEfr BETn BT #ETR
Asat 1 April 2020 RZZZFEMA-A 7,11 26479 1,108,067 5,000 13,580 197,064 57898 1415299
Non-cash movements 2Ry
Exchange difference EiEE (584) 2,461 - - (58) 20,920 - 22,739
Reclassiication of accrued coupon ~ EXHEEZEZEM
interest to other payables ERER - - (20,461) - - - 20,461 -
Effective interest expense incured ~ BEFERFIEHE - - 186,577 250 648 - - 156,475
Reclassflication of accrued interest to E1H EEMEREZ 2
other payables SIS - - - 139 - - (139) -
Derecogrition upon modification of  SAEFT TAMREAHAUY
convertiole bonds 2 - - 3 - - - - (w3
Recognition upon modification of BT AT AR EAEER
convertible bonds - - 275,005 - - - - 275,005
Recognition of new lease EIHE - - - - 4,169 - - 4,169
Financing cash inflows HERSNA 39,725 - - - - 229,620 - 269,345
Financing cash outflows BERERH (31,113 (28,940) (32,614) - (10,604) (63,720) (56,811) (223,802)
As at 31 March 2021 RZEZ-E=A=1-H 15,239 - 141,248 5,389 7,73 383,884 2409 1574904

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z2 _-F - —F=H=+—HIFFZ

Accrued

interest

Amount (included

due to in “trade

arelated  Convertible Other  Promissory Lease Bank  and other
company bonds bond note liabilities  borrowing  payables”) Total

chell s

fEft (tATES

-HRE Wil REf
LFER f%  Etf%  ARRE  HRER  BOHER  BHER) #n
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#hTr  BRTT ERTrT 0 BRTT  ERFr 0 BRTR  ERTn ERTR
Asat 1 April 2021 R-E--EmA-A 15,239 1,141,248 - 5,389 1,135 383,884 21409 1,574,904
Non-cash movements Ei3E 962 - - - 321 9,286 905 11,480

Reclassiication of accrued coupon ~ EH D EEFZEEEM
interest to other payables 1% - (9199 (16,299) - - - 25,494 -
Effective interest expense incured ~ CE4AEEF SER - 104,530 16,205 250 252 - - 121,327
Recognition upon modffication of ~ FAEF AR EAEE

convertiole bonds - (279,500) 279,500 - - - - -
Recognition of lease HE®D - - - - 4515 - - 4515
Financing cash inflows HERSHA 24,800 - - = - = = 24,890
Financing cash outflows HERS T - (63,750) - = (9,054  (393170)  (38609)  (504,583)
As at 31 March 2022 W_E-—%=f=1-H 41,091 893,329 279,500 5,639 3,775 - 9199 1,282,533

S0 AR IO 8 A B )
SERITHER
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212

Subsequent amendments to the terms and
conditions of the other bond

On 24 June 2022, the Company entered into the fourth deed of
amendments to further extend the maturity date of the other bond
in the principal amounts of HK$220,000,000 and HK$59,500,000
to 31 May 2023.

Cancellation of Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) offsetting mechanism

On 9 June 2022, the third reading of a bill for cancelling the MPF
offsetting mechanism (the “Bill”) was passed in the Legislative
Council. After the Bill takes effect, employers can no longer offset
employees’ severance payments or long-service payments against
the MPF derived from the employer’s mandatory and voluntary
contributions. The offsetting mechanism will be cancelled starting
from 2025.

The matter mentioned above will have impact to the Group’s
provision for long service payments (“LSP”). Upon the MPF
offsetting mechanism is cancelled, the Group can no longer
deduct LSP from their portion of MPF contributions. The abolition
of the offsetting arrangement has no retrospective effect.

As at the date of the issue of the financial statements, the exact
effective date of the abolition is yet to be determined and the
details arrangement is yet to be announced by the government.
This is a non-adjusting event after the reporting period as the
event did not relate to the obligation of the LSP at the end of the
reporting period, but reflects the circumstances (i.e. the law) that
have arisen subsequently.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of the Bill to the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether the abolishment of the MPF offsetting mechanism will
result in a substantial change to the Group’s financial statements.

Other than the abovementioned, no other material subsequent
event is noted.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022

HEMRFERRIEHZERERT

RZZBZZFRNAZ+ME  ARARRMLE
MIMEEIREE - NE— A SEABE
220,000,000 7t X 7 & 59,500,000 7T 2 H 1th
BEFNIPH#E—PERE-_T -_=FFA
=+t—8-

BREAE LA Re([ERe ) Hib
Rl
R=B-FRANA - AR SHABED
MRS B EEER(DER]) < ARE
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S L RO T S IR SR B B S R RS
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